

BIDDING DOCUMENT OPEN COMPETITIVE BIDDING

(e-Procurement)

OUTSOURCING OF HOSTEL MESS DIET CATERING ALONGWITH CAFETERIA SERVICE AT JORHAT MEDICAL COLLEGE AND HOSPITAL, JORHAT

IFB NO: SMEJ/JMCH/2866/2024/4080 DATE: 19/09/2024

TWO BID SYSTEMS

Date and Time of Publishing of e-Bid Document	2:00 P.M of 20/09/2024
Date and Time of Pre-Bid Meeting	1:00 P.M of 30/09/2024
Date and Time of Start of Bid Submission	2:00 P.M of 01/10/2024
Date and Time of End of Bid Submission	12:00 P.M of 15/10/2024
Date and Time of Opening of E-Technical Bid	1:00 P.M of 15/10/2024
Tentative Date and Time of Opening ofE-Price Bid	Shall be communicated only to thetechnically qualified bidders subsequently

Tender document may be downloaded from institute's web site <u>www.jorhatmedicalcollege.in</u> (for reference only) and e-portal site <u>https://assamtenders.gov.in</u>

Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat Kushal Konwar Path, Barbheta, P.O. Jorhat-785001, Assam, India Email: tendercellimch@gmail.com www.jorhatmedicalcollege.in

Sd/-Principal cum Chief Superintendent, Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat

PREFACE¹

This SBD has been prepared for procurement of such Non-Consultancy Services, where pre- qualification of Bidders is needed to submit -e-bids are to be invited in double-envelope bidding process. The SBD may be suitably customized for use in other methods of procurements, inviting bids from pre-qualified Bidders, inviting bids globally, under two-envelope system and under e- procurement process.

This SBD is intended as model lump-sum types of contract, which are the most common in Non- Consultancy Services contracting. Lump-sum contracts are used in such Non-Consultancy Services which are well defined and are unlikely to change in quantity or specification, and where encountering difficult or unforeseen site conditions are unlikely.

The SBD shall be used by all the 'Procuring Entities' as defined in Sub-section (x) of Section 2 of the Assam Public Procurement Act, 2017 after suitably customizing it to specific requirement of Non- Consultancy Services.

The instructions/provisions given in Section II - Instructions to Bidders (ITB) **should not be altered while customizing this document**. However, wherever reference to Bid Data Sheet (BDS) has been made, the respective instructions should be complemented / supplemented / amended by way of BDS (Section III), as required. In such case, instructions contained in ITB and related BDS shall be read together. Whenever there is a conflict between the information contained in ITB and BDS, the instructions contained in BDS shall prevail.

Likewise, General Conditions of Contract (Section-VII) should not be altered while customizing this document. However, wherever reference to Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) has been made, the respective clauses should be supplemented and or amended by way of SCC (Section VIII), as required. In such case, the clauses contained in GCC and related SCC shall be read together. Whenever there is a conflict between the information contained in GCC and SCC, the clauses contained in SCC shall prevail. The Section-IX contains Contract Forms and necessary Appendixes which shall be used for signing of Contract with Service Provider.

The Section IV - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria given in this section are generic and suggestive only. These should be prepared afresh for every procurement of Non-Consultancy Services depending on market segment being captured and qualifications that a Bidder should carry to execute contract, if Awarded to a Bidder. This should contain, at one place, all such evaluation methodologies to be applied and qualification criteria that should be fulfilled by the Bidder.

The Section V – Activity Schedule should have all such information related to Scope of Non-Consultancy Services, including details of the works or services to be performed by the Service Provider, the facilities and inputs which will be provided to the Service Provider by the Procuring Entity and completion schedule.

Section VI - Bidding Forms includes all such forms Bidders are required to use / fill and submit along with their bids. In case any additional information is required as per specific requirement of Non- Consultancy Services, the same may be added in existing forms as appropriate. In case required, additional forms may be added in this section.

The State Procurement Facilitation Cell (SPFC) may be contacted ceppassam@gmail.com for any question regarding applicability of the SBD and any issue while customizing it to specific procurement need.

Table of Contents

Section I – Notice Inviting Bids (NIB)
Section II-Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
A. GENERAL
1. Introduction
2. Language of Bids
3. Code of Integrity
4. Conflict of Interest
[™] ,5. Eligible Bidders
∕6. Bidders' Qualification
B. BIDDING DOCUMENTS
7. Content of Bidding Documents
8. Clarifications of Bidding Documents
9. Pre-Bid Meeting
10. Amendments to Bidding Documents
C. PREPARATION OF BIDS
11. Documents Comprising the Bid
12. Letter of Bid and Priced Activity Schedule
13. Alternative Bids
14. Bid Prices
15. Bid Currency
Documents establishing the compliance of Non-Consultancy Services
Documents establishing the eligibility and Qualification of the Bidder
16. Period of validity of Bids
17. Cost of Bidding Documents
18. Bid Security
19. Format and Signing of Bids
D.SUBMISSION AND OPENING OF BIDS
20. Sealing, Marking and Submission of Bids
21. Deadline for Submission of Bids
22. Late Bids
23. Withdrawal, Substitution and Modification of Bids
24. Opening of Bids
E.EVALUATION AND COMPARISON OF BIDS
27.Confidentiality
28. Preliminary Examination of Bids
29. Clarification of Bids
30. Immaterial Non-conformities in Bids
31. Determination of Responsiveness
32. Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions
33. Correction of Arithmetical Errors
34. Sub contractors
35. Evaluation of Bids
36. Comparison of Bids
37. Qualification of the Bidder
38. Procuring Entity's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids
F.AWARD OF CONTRACT
39. Award Criteria
40. Notification of Award
41. Performance Security
42. Signing of Contract
Section III-Bid Data Sheet (BDS)
Section IV-Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
Section V-Activity Schedule
Section VI-Bidding Forms
1. Letter of Bid
2. Bidder Information Form
3. Form of Priced Activity Schedule
4. Methodology and Work Plan
5. Form of Bid Security
6. Qualification Information

7	Proforma for Other Details of Bidder and its Bank
S	Section VII- General Conditions of Contract
	.General Provisions
•	Definitions
	Applicable Law
processes	A Applicable Law
Nedica	Vivotices
5	Phonting
र् मल्यमेक्न) Éòcation
a corpor A	**/Authorized Representatives
Spooned Little	Inspection and Audit by the Govt. of Assam
	Taxes and Duties
	Code of Integrity
2	- , - , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	Effectiveness of Contract
	Intended Completion Date
	Modification55-
	Value Engineering
	Force Majeure
	Termination
3	
	General
	Conflict of Interests
	Confidentiality
	Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider
	Service Provider's Actions Requiring Procuring Entity's Prior Approval
	Reporting Obligations
	Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Procuring Entity
6	
	2 -3.8 Liquidated Damages
О	2 - 3.9 Performance Security
	Service Provider's Personnel
	Description of Personnel
	Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel
4	5 ,
	Assistance and Exemptions
	Change in the Applicable Law
	Services and Facilities
5	. Payments to the Service Provider
	Lump-Sum Remuneration
	Contract Price
	Payment for Additional Services
	Terms and Conditions of Payment
	Day works
6	.Quality Control
	Identifying Defects
	Correction of Defects, and
7	Settlement of Disputes
,	Amicable Settlement
	Dispute Settlement
9	Section VIII- Special Conditions of Contract
	Appendix A- Description of the Services
	Appendix A- Description of the Services
	Appendix C-Key Personnel and Subcontractors
	Appendix D-Breakdown of Contract Price
	Appendix E-Services and Facilities Provided by the Procuring Entity
S	Section IX - Contract Forms
	1. Letter of Acceptance
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Performance Security
	4. Advance Payment Security

Section-I: Notice Inviting Bids (NIB)

GOVT. OF ASSAM FICE OF THE PRINCIPAL CUM CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT JORHAT MEDICAL COLLEGE & HOSPITAL, JORHAT (Under Society for Medical Education Jorhat)

OPEN COMPETITIVE BIDDING

for Procurement of

[Outsourcing of Hostel Mess Diet Catering alongwith Cafeteria Service]

	Bid Ref. No	Dated:_		
1.	The Principal cum Chief Superintendent	invite sealed Bids	from eligible Bidde	rs for
	[Outsourcing of Hostel Mess Diet Catering	ı alongwith Cafeteria	Service] as per follo	owing
	details:			

SI.	Brief Description of Non-	Completion Period/	Bid Security
No.	Consultancy Services	Contract Period (in	(Rs.)
		Months/Yrs)	Lumpsum
1	Outsourcing of Hostel Mess Diet Catering alongwith Cafeteria Service	1 Year on Satisfactory performance and mutual consent from both the parties it may be extended for further one year	Rs. 3,60,000/- (refundable)

- 2. Bidding will be conducted through Open Competitive Bidding method and procedures as specified in "The Assam Public Procurement Act, 2017" and "The Assam Public Procurement Rules,2020". These Act and Rules may be viewed and downloaded from the web-link [provide website link where these documents are available e.g.at https://finance.assam.gov.in/portlets/assam-public-procurement-rules-2020
- 3. The Bidding Documents can be downloaded by any prospective bidders from the-Procurement portal i.e., http://assamtenders.gov.in, free of cost and official website: www.jorhatmedical.college.in
- 4. Bids must be submitted online at the e-Procurement portal (i.e., http://assamtenders.gov.in) on or before the due date for submission i.e. [insert time and date].
- 5. Bidders are required to submit Processing Fee of Rs. 4000/- (Non refundable) in the mode prescribed in the Bidding Documents and a Bid Security of amount as mentioned in the table above for the item(s) bided, unless otherwise mentioned in the Bidding Documents. Exemptions to Bid Security are allowed to certain class of bidders if mentioned in Bidding Documents.
- 6. The Bidders are also required to submit the necessary hardcopy of the Technical Bid (with original documents) like Power of Attorney (PoA), Self undertaking etc.if any

- against the Bid Security etc in the office of the Procuring Entity within due date for submission of of the Technical Bid i.e., [insert time and date]. The Late Bids will be liable for rejection summarily.
- 7. Bitters who seek to appeal against any decision, action or omission regarding this particular procurement may do so as per Section 38 of the Assam Public Procurement Act, 2017 and Rule 26 of the Assam Public Procurement Rules, 2020. The first and second appellate authority are as mentioned below:

First Appellate Authority	Second Appellate Authority
Principal cum Chief Superintendent, Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat, Jail Road, Jorhat-Assam	Smti Laya Madduri, IAS Secretary to the Government of Assam, Finance (A&F, EC-I, EC-III) Department, Second Floor, F Block, Janata Bhawan, Dispur, Guwahati: 781006 Phone No.:0361-2237455 E-mail: I.madduri@nic.in

S/d Principal cum Chief Superintendent, Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat

Section II – Instructions to Bidders (ITB)

A. GENERAL

1. Introduction

- In connection with the Notice Inviting Bids (NIB) for Procurement of Non- Consultancy Services as specified in the Section III Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the Procuring Entity as specified in the BDS, has issued these Bidding Documents for the delivery of Non-Consultancy Services as specified in Section V Activity Schedule.
 - Bidders in preparation and submission of bids. It also includes the mode and procedure to be adopted by the Procuring Entity for receipt and opening as well as scrutiny and evaluation of bids and subsequent placement of award of contract.
- Before preparing the bid and submitting the same to the Procuring Entity through e-Procurement portal, the Bidder should read and examine all the terms & conditions, instructions etc. contained in the Bidding Documents. Failure to provide required information or to comply with the instructions incorporated in this Bidding Documents may result in rejection of bids submitted by Bidders.
- The Bidder at the its own responsibility and risk is encouraged to visit and examine the Site of required Services and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a contract for performing the Services. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder's own expense
- The Bidder shall bear all costs and expenditure incurred and/or to be incurred by it in connection with its bid including preparation, mailing and submission of its bid and subsequently processing the same. The Procuring Entity shall, in no case be responsible or liable for any such cost, expenditure etc. regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.
- The successful Bidder will be expected to complete the performance of Services by the Intended Completion Date as provided in the BDS.

Language of Bids

Bid submitted by the Bidder and all subsequent correspondences and documents relating to the bid exchanged between the Bidder and the Procuring Entity, shall be written in English language. However, the language of any printed literature furnished by the Bidder in connection with its bid may be written in any other language, provided the same is accompanied by a self-certified English translation and, for purposes of interpretation of the bid, the English translation shall prevail.

3. Code of Integrity

ii)

The Procuring Entity and all officers or employees of the Procuring Entity, whether involved in the procurement process or otherwise, or Bidders and their representatives or Consultants or Service Providers participating in a procurement process or other persons involved, directly or indirectly in any way in a procurement process shall maintain an unimpeachable standard of integrity.

Assam prescribes to the Procuring Entity and Bidders to uphold the Code of Integrity, which prohibits officers or employees of Procuring Entity or a person participating in a procurement process the following:

- any offer, solicitation or acceptance of any bribe, reward or gift or any material benefit, either directly or indirectly, in exchange for an unfair advantage in the procurement process or to otherwise influence the procurement process;
- (ii) any omission, including a misrepresentation that misleads or attempts to mislead so as to obtain a financial or other benefit or avoid an obligation;
- (iii) any collusion, bid rigging or anti-competitive behaviour to impair the transparency, fairness and progress of the procurement process;
- (iv) improper use of information shared between the Procuring Entity and the Bidders with an intent to gain unfair advantage in the procurement process or for personal gain;
- (v) any financial or business transactions between the Bidder and any officer or employee of the Procuring Entity, who are directly or indirectly related to tender or execution process of contract;
- (vi) any coercion including impairing or harming or threatening to do the same, directly or indirectly, to any party or to its property to influence the procurement process;
- any obstruction of any investigation or audit of a procurement process;
 - (viii) making false declaration or providing false information for participation in
 - a) tender process or to secure a contract;
 - b) disclosure of Conflict of Interest;
 - c) Disclosure by the Bidder of any previous transgressions with any entity in India or any other country during the last three years or

of any debarment by any other Procuring Entity.

In case of any breach of the Code of Integrity by a Bidder or a prospective Bidder, as the case may be, the Procuring Entity after giving a reasonable opportunity of being heard, may take appropriate measures including—

exclusion of the Bidder from the procurement process;

calling off of pre-contract negotiations and forfeiture or encashment of bid security; forfeiture or encashment of any other security or bond relating to procurement; recovery of payments made by the Procuring Entity along with interest thereon at bank rate;

- (v) cancellation of the relevant contract and recovery of compensation for loss incurred by the Procuring Entity;
- (vi) debarment of the Bidder from participation in any future procurements of any Procuring Entity for a period not exceeding three years.

4. Conflict of Interest

Conflict of Interest for a Procuring Entity or its personnel and Bidders is considered to be a situation in which a party has interests that could improperly influence that performance of its duties or responsibilities, contractual obligations, or compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Govt. of Assam describes the situations in which a Procuring Entity or its personnel may be considered to be in Conflict of Interest include, but are not limited to the following-

- a) Conflict of Interest occurs when the private interests of a Procuring Entity or its personnel, such as personal, non-official, extra-professional or other relationships or personal financial assets, interfere or appear to interfere with the proper performance of its professional functions or obligations as a procurement official;
- b) within the procurement environment, a Conflict of Interest may arise in connection with such private interests as personal investments and assets, political or other social activities and affiliations while in the service of the Procuring Entity, employment after retirement from service or of relatives or the receipt of a gift that may place the Procuring Entity or its personnel in a position of obligation;
- c) Conflict of Interest also includes the use of assets of the Procuring Entity including human, financial and material assets, or the use of the office of the Procuring Entity or knowledge gained from official functions for private gain or to prejudice the position of someone the Procuring Entity or its personnel does not favour;
- a) Conflict of Interest may also arise in situations where the Procuring Entity or any of its personnel is seen to benefit directly or indirectly or allow a third party, including family, friends or someone they favour, to benefit directly or indirectly from the decision or action of the Procuring Entity;

The situations in which Bidders participating in a procurement process or their representatives may be considered to be in Conflict of Interest include, but are not limited to the following—

- a) If they or their personnel or representatives or agents have any relationship or financial or business transactions or interests with any official of the Procuring Entity that are directly or indirectly involved in or related to the procurement process or execution of contract;
- b) If they receive or have received any direct or indirect subsidy from any other Bidder;
- c) If they have the same legal representative for purposes of the bid;
- d) If they have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the bid of another;
- e) If they participate in more than one bid in the same bidding process;

f) If they have controlling partners in common;

If a Bidder or any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the subject matter of procurement of the bidding process or were involved in such preparation in anyway;

In the 'Letter of Bid' to be submitted by the Bidder, as per format given in **Section VI - Bidding Forms**, each Bidder shall provide a signed statement that the Bidder is neither associated nor has been associated directly or indirectly with the consultant or any other entity that has prepared the design, specifications and other documents for the subject matter of procurement or is being proposed as Project Manager for the contract;

In case of a holding company having more than one independent units or more than one unit having common business ownership or management, only one unit shall be allowed to submit bid or quote to prevent any Conflict of Interest. Similar restrictions shall apply to closely related sister or subsidiary companies. Such Bidders must proactively declare such sister or subsidiary company or common business or management units in similar lines of business;

5. Eligible Bidders

g)

Bidder shall be a natural person, private entity, government-own identity or, any combination of these having a formal intent and legal competency to enter into an agreement or contract and are registered under respective Act and Jurisdiction in India or any other country with which India has not banned trade relations.

Bidder should not have a Conflict of Interest as prescribed and specified in ITB Para 4, which materially affects fair competition.

In addition, any Bidder participating in the procurement process shall-

- (i) have fulfilled his obligation to pay such of the tax payable to the Central Government or the State Government or any local authority;
- (ii) not be insolvent, in receivership, bankrupt or being wound up, not have its affairs administered by a court or a judicial officer, not have its business activities suspended and must not be the subject of legal proceedings for any of the foregoing reasons;
- (iii) not have, and their directors and officers not have, been convicted of any criminal offence related to their professional conduct or the making of false statements or misrepresentations as to their qualifications to enter into a procurement contract within a period of three years preceding the commencement of the procurement process, or not have been otherwise disqualified pursuant to debarment proceedings;
- (iv) not be debarred by any Procuring Entity under the State Government, the Central Government, Autonomous body, Authority by whatever name called under them.

In the 'Letter of Bid' to be submitted by the Bidder, as per format given in **Section VI - Bidding Forms**, all Bidders shall provide a signed statement that the Bidder fulfils the eligibility requirements given in ITB Para 5.3;

- 6. Bidders' Qualification
 - (i) Bidders should substantially meet the qualification criteria as stipulated in the

Section IV - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

Bidders should fill and submit the Forms provided in **Section VI - Bidding Forms** to provide a preliminary description of the proposed work method and schedule, including drawings and charts, as necessary, relevant information and documents in support of fulfillment of Bidder's qualification, along with its bid.

B. BIDDING DOCUMENTS

Content of Bidding Documents

7.

the Bidding Documents include the following Sections, which should be read in conjunction with any Amendment issued in accordance with ITB Para10.

1) Section I Notice Inviting Bids (NIB)

ii)Section II Instructions to Bidders (ITB)

iii) Section III Bid Data Sheet

iv) Section IV Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

v)Section V Activity Schedule

vi) Section VI Bidding Forms

vii) Section VII General Conditions of Contract (GCC)

viii) Section VIII Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)

ix) Section IX Contract Forms

Unless downloaded directly from the Procuring Entity's website **as specified in the BDS**, Procuring Entity shall not be responsible for the correctness of the Bidding Documents, responses to requests for clarification, the Minutes of the Pre-bid meeting, if any, or Amendment(s) to the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB Para10.

Bidders are expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Documents and to furnish with its Bid all information or documentation as is required by the Bidding Documents.

8. Clarifications of Bidding Documents

A Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Documents shall contact the Procuring Entity in writing at the Procuring Entity's address **specified in the BDS**. The Procuring Entity will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received at least 3 (three) working days prior to the deadline for submission of bids or prior to the date and time as scheduled for pre-bid meeting, where a pre-bid meeting is **specified in the BDS**.

The Procuring Entity shall also promptly publish brief description of the enquiry but without identifying its source and its response at the its website as **specified in the BDS**.

Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the Bidding Documents, the Procuring Entity shall amend the Bidding Documents following the procedure given under ITB Para10.

9. Pre-Bid Meeting

In order to provide response to any doubt regarding Bidding Documents, or to clarify issues, a pre-bid meeting may be scheduled, **if specified in the BDS**. During the pre-bid meeting, the clarification sought by representative of prospective Bidders shall be responded appropriately. However, they shall be asked to submit their written request prior to the day and time as scheduled for pre-bid meeting. The Procuring

Entity / TIA's shall publish written response to such requests for clarifications, without identifying its source in the e-Procurement portal.. In case required, amendment(s), in terms of ITB Para 10 below shall be issued, which shall be binding on all prospective Bidders.

adments to Bidding Documents

ITB Para 8 and 9 and for any reason deemed fit by it, amend or modify the Bidding Documents by issuing Amendment(s).

Such Amendment(s) will be published on Procuring Entity's website **as specified in the BDS** and the same shall be binding on all prospective Bidders.

In order to give reasonable time to prospective Bidders to take necessary action in preparing their bids, the Procuring Entity may, at its discretion extend the deadline for the submission of bids and other allied time frames, which are linked with that deadline.

Any Bidder who has downloaded the Bidding Documents should check the Amendment(s), if any, issued on the Procuring Entity's website. The Procuring Entity shall not be responsible in any manner if prospective Bidders miss any Amendment(s) published on Procuring Entity's website.

C. PREPARATION OF BIDS

11. Documents Comprising the Bid

e bid shall be submitted online in Two Part (Technical and Financial) at the e- Procurement portal by the Bidder within due date and shall comprise the following:

- i)Letter of Bid as per Form provided in **Section VI Bidding Forms**;
- ii) Priced Activity Schedule completed in accordance with ITB Para14;
- iii) Cost of Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB Para 19 (if required);

10.

- iv) Bid Security furnished in accordance with ITB Para20;
- y) Bidder Information Form as per Form provided in **Section VI: Bidding Forms**; Documents establishing the compliance of Non-Consultancy Services in accordance with **ITB Para 16**:

Documents establishing Bidders' eligibility and qualification in accordance with ITB Para 17.2 and Forms given in Section VI: Bidding Forms;

- viii) Bidder firm's Certificate of Incorporation/ Registration, Article and Memorandum of Association or any such registration document;
- ix) Self-attested copy of Income Tax Registration Certificate / PAN card;
- x) Self-attested copy of GSTIN registration;
- xi) Any other document as required in the BDS
- xii) An Undertaking from the Bidders to the effect that they agree and abide by the clauses / conditions of Bidding Documents issued by the Procuring Entity and any amendment made thereafter.

12. Letter of Bid and Priced Activity Schedule

The Letter of Bid and Priced Activity Schedule shall be prepared as per the Forms furnished in **Section VI: Bidding Forms**. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.

13. Alternative Bids

Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**, alternative bids shall not be considered.

14. Preparation and Submission of Bid

- The Bidder shall prepare the Technical Bid comprising of all documents as mentioned in ITB. The bid shall be typed or written in ink with all pages serially numbered and signed by the Bidder or a person duly authorized to sign on its behalf, as mentioned in **BDS**, in token of acceptance of the Bid terms and conditions, Corrections in the bid such as interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are duly signed or initialed by the person signing the bid.
- The Bidder shall submit both Technical and Price Bid online at the e- Procurement portal within due date and time for submission of Bid as mentioned in **BDS**. In addition to the online submission, the Bidder must submit only the necessary hardcopy like PoA, Proof against Bid Security etc. of the "Technical Bid" within the due date and time of submission as mentioned in **BDS** and in the manner as specified in **ITB**. Non-submission of hardcopy of the "Technical Bid" shall amount to cancellation of the Bid, summarily.
- The bidding documents issued by the Procuring Entity in the e-procurement portal (i.e., http://assamtenders.gov.in) will appear in the "Latest Active Tender".

The Bidders/ Guest users can download the Bidding documents only after the due date & time of issue. The publication of the Bidding Document (i.e., Tender) will be for specific period till the due date for submission of bids after which the same will be removed from the list of "Latest Active Tender".

Portal Registration: The bidder intending to participate in the bid is required to register in the e-Procurement portal using an active personal/ official e-mail ID as his/her Login ID and attach his/her valid Digital Signature Certificate (DSC)

- Class II or III to his/her unique Login ID. He/ She must submit the relevant information as asked for about the bidder. The portal registration of the bidder is to be authenticated by the State Procurement Cell after verification of original valid certificates/documents such as (i) PAN and (ii) GST Registration Certificate (RC) (iii) In Procuring Entity Certificate (iv) manufacturing license of the concerned bidder. Any change of information by the bidder is to be re- authenticated by the State Procurement Cell. After successful authentication, bidder can participate in the online bidding process.
- Logging to the Portal: The Bidder is required to type his/her Login ID and password. The system will again ask to select the DSC and confirm it with the password of DSC as a second stage authentication. For each login, a user's DSC will be validated against its date of validity and against the Certificate Revocation List (CRL) of respective CAs stored in system database. The system checks the unique Login ID, password and DSC combination and authenticates the login process for use of portal.
- The bidder can download the bidding document and undertake the necessary preparatory work off-line and upload the completed bid at their convenience before due date and time for submission.
- The bidder can upload technical bid in two files in ".pdf" format. For management of space, the bidder can serially arrange their document as per the checklist and create two equal size check ".pdf" files and upload them.

15. Bid Prices

The prices quoted by the Bidder in the Priced Activity Schedule shall conform to the requirements specified below.

All Schedules / Lots (if any) and items thereunder must be listed and priced separately in the Priced Activity Schedule.

The Contract shall be for the Services, as described in Appendix A to the Contract and in the Specifications (or Terms of Reference), based on the priced Activity Schedule, submitted by the Bidder.

The Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Services described in the in Specifications (or Terms of Reference), and listed in the **Activity Schedule in Section V**. Items for which no rate or price is entered by the

Bidder will not be paid for by the Procuring Entity when executed and shall be deemed covered by the other rates and prices in the Activity Schedule.

The price to be quoted in the bidding form in accordance with ITB Para 12.1 shall be the total price of the bid.

The price quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the Contract and shall not be subject to variation on any account, unless otherwise specified **in the BDS**. The bid submitted with adjustable price quotation shall be treated as non responsive and shall be rejected.

The price shall be quoted as specified in the Form of Priced Activity Schedule given in Section VI - available in e-Procurement Portal. The dis-aggregation of price components is required solely for the purpose of facilitating the comparison of bids by the Procuring Entity. This shall not in any way limit the Procuring Entity's right to contract on any of the terms offered.

The Bidder shall quote Prices inclusive of all taxes and duties / GST payable on the services if the contract is awarded.

For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional Services, a breakdown of the lump-sum price shall be provided in the form of Appendix- D to the Contract.

16. Bid Currency

The Bidder should submit its quote in Indian Rupees only.

Bids, where prices are quoted in any other currency shall be treated as non-responsive and rejected.

17. Documents establishing the compliance of Non-Consultancy Services

To establish the conformity of the Non-Consultancy Services to the Bidding Documents, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that the Non-Consultancy Services conform to the technical specifications and standards specified in **Section V – Activity Schedule**.

The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the Scope of Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness to the Scope of Services, and if applicable, a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the **Section V – Activity Schedule.**

Standards of the Non-Consultancy Services specified by the Procuring Entity in the Activity Schedule, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards, provided that it demonstrates, to the Procuring Entity's satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are

superior to those specified in the Section V– Activity Schedule.

18. Documents establishing the eligibility and Qualification of the Bidder



To establish Bidder's their eligibility in accordance with ITB Para 5, Bidders shall complete the Letter of Bid, included in Section VI – Bidding Forms

The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted shall establish to the Procuring Entity's satisfaction that the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion specified in "Section IV - Qualification and Evaluation Criteria"

19. Period of validity of Bids

Bids shall remain valid for the period **specified in the BDS** after the bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Procuring Entity in accordance with ITB Para 23.1. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Procuring Entity as non-responsive

In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the Procuring Entity may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid.

After the expiry of the bid validity period formally withdraw my/our response in writing with a notice period of seven working days and associated terms and conditions and as specified in the Bid document and in all such cases my/our bid shall be deemed to be valid.

The Bidder who agree to the extension of the period of validity of bids so requested by the Procuring Entity shall also extend the period of validity of bid securities submitted by them or submit new bid security to cover the extended period of validity of their bids. A Bidder whose bid security is not extended or new bid securities not submitted shall be considered to have refused the request to extend the period of non-responsive. The decision of Procuring Entity will be final and binding in this regard.

20. Cost of Bidding Documents

The Bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, the cost of Bidding Documents (non-refundable), in the amount if **specified in the BDS**. The cost of Bidding Documents shall be in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:

- (a) Banker's Cheque issued by Scheduled Bank in India; or
- (b) Deposit through Digital mode if specified in the BDS;

In case, bid security is submitted in form of Bank Guarantee, it should be submitted either using the form provided in Section VI - Bidding Forms. The Bank Guarantee submitted as Bid Security shall be verified and confirmed from the competent authority of the concerning issuing Bank.

The Bid Security must remain valid for 28 days beyond the original or extended validity period of the bid.

Any bid not accompanied by a Bid Security as specified in ITB Para 20.2 and 20.4 and not secured as indicated in Para 20.6 shall be rejected by the Procuring Entity as non-responsive.

The bid security of a Bidder lying with the Procuring Entity, if any, in respect of other bids awaiting decision shall not be adjusted towards bid security required under this Bidding Documents.

The bid security originally deposited by a Bidder may be taken into consideration, in case bids are re-invited, if found valid, if so **specified in the BDS**. Such Bidders are required to ascertain validity of bids for consideration in lieu of bid security required under this Bidding Documents.

The Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidder shall be released within 15 (Fifteen) working days after signing of Agreement and deposit of performance security by the successful Bidder.

The Bid Security of successful Bidders shall be released within 15 (Fifteen) working days upon the successful Bidder's signing the contract and furnishing the Perform1ance Security pursuant to ITB Para 41. As an alternative, the amount of Bid Security may be adjusted with the amount of performance security required from him or refunded if the successful Bidder furnishes the full amount of performance security, if **provided in the BDS**.

In case Procuring Entity decides to cancel the procurement process, it shall return the bid security of all Bidders after the decision to cancel procurement process.

The Bid Security of the Bidder, who withdraws its bid prior to deadline for submission of bids, in case bid withdrawal is permitted, shall be returned after the opening of the bids.

The Bid Security deposited by a Bidder shall be forfeited in the following cases:

- (a) when the Bidder withdraws or modifies its bid after opening of bids;
- (b) when the Bidder does not deposit the required performance security within the specified period; and
- (c) if the Bidder breaches any provisions of Code of Integrity prescribed for Bidders as per ITB Para3.

21. Format and Signing of Bids

The Bidder shall prepare and submit their proposals (Technical and Financial Proposal) through e-Procurement portal Only through the Digital Signature.

All pages serially numbered and signed by the Bidder or a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder in token of acceptance of the terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation **as specified in the BDS** which shall be attached to the Bid.

Any corrections in the bid such as interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are duly signed or initialled by the person signing the bid.

D. SUBMISSION AND OPENING OFBIDS

22. Sealing, Marking and Submission of Bids

Bidders may submit their original documents viz PoA and other requisite doccuments etc. by post or by hand or drop in the box earmarked by the Procuring Entity. Bids so submitted shall enclose the original and each copy of the bid in separately sealed envelopes duly marked as "ORGINAL". The envelopes containing the original and the copies shall then be enclosed in one single sealed outer envelope.

The inner and outer envelopes shall bar the:

- a) name and complete address along with the mobile, telephone number and email address of the Bidder:
- b) complete postal address of the Procuring Entity;
- c) specific identification mark / Bid Ref. No. and subject matter of procurement;
- d) a warning 'not to open before the time and date for bid opening' as indicated in the Bidding Documents If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Procuring Entity will assume no responsibility about its consequences viz. misplacement or premature opening of the bid

23. Deadline for Submission of Bids

Bids must be received through e-Procurement portal and no later than the date and time specified in the BDS.

The date of submission and opening of bids shall not be extended except when-

- a) Sufficient number of bids have not been received within the given time and the Procuring Entity is of the opinion that further bids are likely to be submitted if time is extended; or
- b) the Bidding Documents are required to be substantially modified as a result of discussions in pre-bid meeting or otherwise and the time for preparations of bids by the prospective Bidders appears to be insufficient for which such extension is required.
- In cases where the time and date of submission of bids is extended, an amendment to the Bidding Documents shall be issued in accordance with ITB Para 10, in which case all rights and obligations of the Procuring Entity and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to

the deadline extended

If the due date for submission of bids is not a working day, the bids shall be received and opened at the same time and hour on the next working day.

submission of Bid (except details of online submission of Bid Security& Processing fee). In case of online resubmission of the bid, the latest submitted bid shall be available for evaluation.

24. Opening of Bids

Technical Bids submitted by the Bidders through the e-Procurement portal shall be opened online on the due date for opening of the bid as specified in the BDS. It shall be cross checked first to confirm whether all the bidders have also submitted the requisite hardcopy of the technical bid within due date for submission. The bid of those bidders who fails to submit the hardcopy of the technical bid within the due date and time for submission of hardcopy as specified in the BDS shall be cancelled and excluded from further evaluation.

The Technical Bid of only those bidders who have submitted the requisite hardcopy and online within due date and time shall be considered for evaluation by the Bid Evaluation Committee of the Procuring Entity.

E. EVALUATION AND COMPARISON OF BIDS

25. Confidentiality

Information relating to the evaluation of bids and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the bidding process until information on Contract Award is communicated to all Bidders

Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Procuring Entity in the evaluation or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.

Notwithstanding ITB Para 27.2, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Procuring Entity on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing.

26. Preliminary Examination of Bids

The Bid Evaluation Committee constituted by the Procuring Entity shall conduct a preliminary scrutiny of the opened bids at the beginning to assess the prima-facie responsiveness and record its findings thereof particularly in respect of the following:

that the bid is signed, as per the requirements listed in the Bidding Documents; that the bid has been sealed as per instructions in the Bidding Documents;

- (c) the bid is valid for the period, specified in the Bidding Documents;
- (d) that the bid is accompanied by due Bid Security and Processing Fee;
- (e) that the bid is unconditional and that the Bidder has agreed to give the required performance security; and
- (f) whether any other conditions specified in the Bidding Documents are fulfilled.

27. Clarification of Bids

To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison and qualification of the bids, the Bid Evaluation Committee may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder in writing for clarification by a specific date regarding its bid specifically therein that if the Bidder does not comply or respond by that date his bid shall be liable to be rejected. The request of the Committee for clarification and the response of the Bidder thereto shall be in writing. Depending on the outcome, such bids shall be ignored or considered further;

Any clarification submitted by a Bidder with regard to his bid that is not in response to a request by the Committee specifically shall not be considered;

No change in the prices or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Committee in the evaluation of the financial bids;

No substantive change to qualification information or to a submission, including changes aimed at making an unqualified Bidder, qualified or an unresponsive submission, responsive shall be sought, offered or permitted under any circumstances; all communication generated as above shall be included in the record of the procurement proceedings.

28. Immaterial Non-conformities in Bids

The Bid Evaluation Committee may waive non-conformities in the bid that do not constitute a material deviation, reservation or omission and deem the bid to be responsive;

The Bid Evaluation Committee may request the Bidder to submit necessary information or documents which are historical in nature like audited statements of accounts, tax clearance certificate, PAN, etc. within a reasonable period of time. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request within the given time shall result in the rejection of its bid; the Bid Evaluation Committee may rectify immaterial non-conformities or omissions on the basis of the information or documentation received from the Bidder under ITB Para30.2.

29. Determination of Responsiveness

The Bid Evaluation Committee constituted by the Procuring Entity shall determine the responsiveness of a bid to the Bidding Documents based on the contents of the bid submitted by the Bidder;

- A bid shall be deemed to be substantially responsive if it meets the requirements of the Bidding Documents without any material deviation, reservation, or omission where:-
- (a) "deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents;
- (b) "reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents; and
- (c) "omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the bidding documents.

A "material deviation, reservation, or omission" is one that,

- (a) If accepted shall:-
 - (i) effect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the subject matter of procurement specified in the Bidding Documents; or
 - (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the rights of the Procuring Entity or the obligation of the Bidder under the proposed contract; or
- (b) if rectified shall unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting responsive bids;

The Bid Evaluation Committee shall examine the technical aspects of the bid in particular to confirm that all requirements of Bidding Documents have been met without any material deviation, reservation or omission;

The Bid Evaluation Committee shall regard a bid as responsive if it conforms to all requirements set out in the Bidding Documents, or contains minor deviations that do not materially alter or depart from the characteristics, terms, conditions and other requirements set out in the Bidding Documents, that is, there is no material deviation, or if it contains errors or oversights that can be corrected without any change in the substance of the bid;

Bids that are not responsive or contain any material deviation shall be rejected. Bids declared as non-responsive shall be excluded from any further evaluation.

30. Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions

Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Bid Evaluation Committee may waive any nonconformities in the Bid.

Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Procuring Entity or authorised representative may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.

Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Bid Evaluation Committee shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non- conforming item or component.

31. Correction of Arithmetical Errors

Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Bid Evaluation Committee shall correct

arithmetical errors in the following cases, namely:

- (a) If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Committee there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the total price as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
- (b) if there is an error in a calculation of the total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
- (c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b)above.
 - If the price bid is ambiguous leading to two equally valid total price amounts, the bid shall be treated as non-responsive and rejected. Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB Para 33.1, shall result in the rejection of the Bid.

32. Subcontractors

No sub contract will be allowed

33. Evaluation of Bids

The Procuring Entity / Evaluation Committee shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Clause. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted.

To evaluate a Bid, the Procuring Entity / Evaluation Committee shall consider the following:

- (a) Evaluation will be done for Items or Schedules /Lots (contracts),as **specified in the BDS**; and the Priced Activity Schedule as quoted in accordance with ITB Para 14.
- (b) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 33.1
- (c) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB Para14
- (d) price adjustment due to quantifiable non material non conformities in accordance with ITB 30.3
- (e) the additional evaluation factors are specified in **Section IV**: **Evaluation and Qualification**Criteria
 - If Bidders are allowed to quote separate prices for different Schedules / Lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated price of the Schedule/ Lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of Bid Form as specified in BDS and **in Section IV** Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
 - The evaluation of a bid will include and take into account all taxes and duties / GST payable on the services if the contract is awarded to the Bidder
 - The Procuring Entity's evaluation of a bid may require the consideration of other factors, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB 14. These factors may be related to the characteristics, performance, and terms and conditions of purchase of Non-Consultancy Services. The effect of the factors selected, if any, shall be expressed in monetary terms to facilitate comparison of bids, shall be **specified in Section IV Qualification and Evaluation Criteria**.

34. Comparison of Bids

The Procuring Entity / Evaluation Committee shall compare the evaluated prices of all substantially responsive bids established in accordance with ITB 35.2 to determine the lowest evaluated bid.

The additional criteria for comparison of bid prices of substantially responsive bids are specified in Section IV - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

35. Qualification of the Bidder

The Procuring Entity shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated and substantially responsive bid meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section IV - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB Para17

An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the bid, in which event the Procuring Entity/ Evaluation Committee shall proceed to the next lowest evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.

36. Abnormally Low Bids

An Abnormally Low Bid is one where the Bid price in combination with other constituent elements of the Bid appears unreasonably low (exceeds the estimated price by more than 15% or is below the estimated price by more than 15%) to the extent that the Bid price raises material concerns as to the capability of the Bidder to perform the Contract for the offered Bid Price.

In the event of identification of a potentially Abnormally Low Bid, the Procuring Entity shall seek written clarifications from the Bidder, including detailed price analyses of its Bid price in relation to the subject matter of the contract, scope, proposed methodology, schedule, allocation of risks and responsibilities and any other requirements of the bidding document.

After evaluation of the price analyses, in the event that the Procuring Entity determines that the Bidder has failed to demonstrate its capability, to perform the Contract for the offered Bid Price, the Procuring Entity reserves the right to reject the Bid.

37. Procuring Entity's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids

The Procuring Entity reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to cancel / annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the Bidders for which the Procuring Entity shall keep record of clear and logical reasons properly for any such action / recall of bidding process. In case of cancellation / annulment, all bids submitted and specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.

F. AWARD OF CONTRACT

38. Award Criteria

Subject to ITB 38.1, the Procuring Entity shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose bid has been accepted after evaluation of bids.

The contract shall not be awarded to more than one Bidder by splitting the quantity as given in Activity Schedule.

39. Notification of Award

Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Procuring Entity shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Procuring Entity will pay the Service Provider in consideration of the Delivery / Performance of Services (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called "the Contract Price").

Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the Letter of Acceptance shall constitute a binding Contract.

The Procuring Entity shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after notification of award in accordance with ITB Para 40.1, requests in writing the grounds on which its bid was not selected.

40. Performance Security

Within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of Letter of Acceptance from the Procuring Entity, the successful Bidder, if required, shall furnish the Performance Security amount as specified in BDS, in accordance with the GCC, using the Performance Security Form included in Section IX: Contract Forms, or another Form acceptable to the Procuring Entity and sign the contract.

Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security and/or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Procuring Entity may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder, whose bid is substantially responsive and is determined by the Procuring Entity to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily provided the offered by it is reasonable. The validity of the performance security shall be for a period of 60 days beyond the date of completion of all contractual obligations.

41. Signing of Contract

Promptly after notification of Award, the Procuring Entity shall send the successful Bidder the Contract Agreement.

Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Procuring Entity along with the performance security.

Section III - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

Bid Data Sheet

The following specific data for the Non-Consultancy Services to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB

ITB Para Reference	Particulars
	A. General
ITB 1.1	The reference number of the Notice Inviting Bids (NIB) is: [SMEJ/JMCH/2866/2024/4080 Dated: 19/09/2024] The Procuring Entity is: [Principal cum Chief Superintendent]
ITB 1.6	The Intended Completion Date is [one year from the date of exaction of contract]
ITB7.2	Bidding Documents shall be available online at e-Procurement portal i.e., http://assamtenders.gov.in
	B. Bidding Documents
ITB 8.1	The Procuring Entity's address for the purpose of any clarification is: [O/o. the Principal cum Chief Superintendent, Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Administrative Building, Jail Road, Jorhat- Pin: 785001. Email: jmc-asm@nic.in & tendercelljmch@gmail.com
	Requests for clarification should be received by the Procuring Entity no later than: [7 (seven) day from the Date of publication of NIB]
ITB8.2	Response to the queries raised by the prospective bidders shall be published in the e-Procurement portal i.e., http://assamtenders.gov.in and there shall be no individual communication. The prospective bidders are expected to visit the portal on regular interval.
ITB 9.1	Pre-Bid Meeting shall be scheduled: Yes In case Pre-Bid Meeting is scheduled, name of contact person, venue, time and date for pre-bid meeting are specified as under: Name of contact person (s): Dr. Nayanjyoti Sarmah, Deputy Superintendent, i/c, Procurement Ph- 9613111445 Email: Tendercelljmch@gmail.com
	b) Sri. Prosanta Hazarika, Rtd. AFS Financial Advisor, JMCH Ph- 7002383203 Email : <u>prosanta.afs@gmail.com</u>
	Contact Details (Phone / Mobile/E-mail):
	Address of Venue: College Coucil Hall, Admin Block, JMC
	From 1.00 P.M onward 30/09/2024
ITB10.2	Amendments or modifications, if any, in the bidding document shall be published at e-Procurement portal i.e., http://assamtenders.gov.in

	C. Preparation of Bids
ITB 11.1	The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its Bid:
(xv)	[list any additional document not already listed in ITB 11.1 that must be submitted with the Bid]
ITB 13.1	Alternative Bids shall not be considered.
ITB 14.4	The price quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the Contract and shall not be subject to variation on any account.
ITB 18.1	The bid validity period shall be 365 days.
ITB 19.1	Bid Processing Fee Rs. 1000 7-Non refundable) may be submitted through online mode i.e. State Bank Multi Option Payment System (SBMOPS) on https://assamtenders.gov.in. If the tenderer fails to submit the same, their tenders will be rejected.
ITB20.1	The amount of Bid Security shall be Rs. 50000/- (refundable) may be submitted through online mode i.e. State Bank Multi Option Payment System (SBMOPS) on https://assamtenders.gov.in. If the tenderer fails to submit the same, their tenders will be rejected.
ITB20.2	The bid security originally deposited by a Bidder shall be considered.
	[n case the bids under reference are being invited again (re-bidding), insert above statement, else replace it with 'Not applicable']
ITB20.3	The bid security of successful Bidder shall be refunded upon submission of the full amount of performance security by the successful Bidder.

	1	
ITB21.1	In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies is: <i>[insert number of copies]</i>	
ITB21.2	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of: [insert the name and description of the documentation required to demonstrate the authority of the signatory to sign the Bid]	
	D. Submission and Opening of Bids	
ITB23.1	Procuring Entity's address for bid submission is:	
	[O/o. the Principal cum Chief Superintendent, Admin Block, Circular Building, Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat]	
	The deadline for Bid Submission is: 04-10-2024 upto 12.00 Noon	
ITB26.1	The bid opening shall take place at :College Council Hall, Admin Block, Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat-Assam	
	The date and time for Bid opening is:_04-10-2024 at 1.00 P.M.	
	A hardcopy of Technical Bid must be submitted after submission of online i.e. upto 04-10-2024 at 12.00 Noon.	
	E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids	
ITB 34.1	The Procuring Entity does not intend to execute certain specific parts of the Non-Consultancy Services by sub-contractors selected in advance.	
ITB 41 (a)	The performance security shall be of Rs. 5% of the	
11.5 41 (a)	lumpsum contract value/ annual contract value) to be furnished by the	
	bidder awarded the contract before signing of the contract i.e. within	
	28 days from the date of issue of Letter of Acceptance.	

Section IV - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This Section contains all the criteria that the Procuring Entity shall use to evaluate a bid and qualify the Bidders in accordance with ITB 34, 35 and 36, no other factors, methods or criteria shall be used.

Evaluation (ITB35)

Evaluation Criteria (ITB 35.2(e))

The Procuring Entity shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Section to evaluate Bids. By applying the criteria and methodologies the Procuring Entity shall determine the Most Advantageous Bid. This is the Bid that meets the Qualification Criteria and has been determined to be:

- a) substantially responsive to the bidding document, and
- b) the lowest evaluated cost.

The Procuring Entity's evaluation of a Bid to determine lowest evaluated Bidder may take into account, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB 14, one or more of the following factors as specified in ITB 35.4 (b) and in BDS referring to ITB 35.4 (b), using the following criteria and methodologies.

Adequacy of Technical Proposal

Evaluation of the Bidder's Technical Proposal will include an assessment of the Bidder's technical capacity to mobilize key equipment and personnel for the contract consistent with its proposal regarding work methods, scheduling, and material sourcing in sufficient detail and fully in accordance with the requirements stipulated in **Section V: Activity Schedule**

Multiple Contracts (ITB35.3)

If Bids are invited for individual Schedules / Lots or for any combination of Schedules / Lots, the contract will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering a substantially responsive bid(s) and the lowest evaluated cost to the Procuring Entity for combined Schedules / Lots, subject to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required Qualification Criteria (this Section IV, Qualification Requirements) for a lot or combination of Schedules / Lots as the case may be.

In determining Bidder or Bidders that offer the total lowest evaluated cost to the Procuring Entity, after considering all possible combinations of Schedules / Lots, the Procuring Entity shall apply the following steps in sequence:

- a) Evaluate individual Schedules/ Lots to determine the substantially responsive Bids and corresponding evaluated costs;
- b) For each lot, rank the substantially responsive bids starting from the lowest evaluated cost for the Schedule /Lot:
- apply to the evaluated costs listed in (b) above, any applicable discounts/price reductions
 offered by a Bidder (s) for the award of multiple contracts based on the discounts and the
 methodology for their application offered by the respective Bidder; and
- d) determine contract award on the basis of the combination of Schedule/Lots that offer the total lowest evaluated cost to the Procuring Entity.

Qualification (ITB36)

Post qualification Requirements (ITB36.2)

After determining the lowest-evaluated bid in accordance with ITB 36.1, the Procuring Entity shall carry out the post qualification of the Bidder in accordance with ITB 36, using only the

requirements specified. Requirements not included in the text below shall not be used in the evaluation of the Bidder's qualifications.

- To qualify for award of the Contract, Bidders shall meet the following minimum qualifying criteria [suggestive]:
- a) The Bidder should have total volume of Services of **Rs. 3 Crores** during last 3 (three) financial years; [specify value which is 100% of the estimated cost of non-consultancy services]
- c) The Bidder must be a business entity in existence for more than last 3 (three) financial years [21-22, 22-23, 23-24]
- d) PAN
- e) Registration under the EPF Act 1952 and ESI Act
- f) GST Registration No.
- g) Up to date Labour license No.
- h) Up to date Registration of FSSAI Certificate
- i) The Bidder should have Valid Trade License and GST registration from the Govt. of Assam
- j) The bidder should deploy a Contract Manager with five years' experience in Services of an equivalent nature and volume, including no less than three years as Manager; and
- k) The bidder should have liquid assets and/or credit facilities, net of other contractual commitments and exclusive of any advance payments which may be made under the Contract
- I) The Bidder shall include the following information and documents with their Bids [suggestive]:
- a) Total monetary value of Services performed for each of the last three years;
- b) experience in Services of a similar nature and size for each of the last five years, and details of Services under way or contractually committed; and names and address of clients who may be contacted for further information on those contracts;
- c) annual audited financial statements, including profit & loss statements for last 5 (five) financial years;
- d) qualifications and experience of key site management and technical personnel proposed for the Contract;
- e) Credit line / Letter of Credit / Certificate from Its Banker for meeting the fund requirement for execution of Non-Consultancy Services.

General Condition & Scope of the Contract



Scope of Work:

The contract is essentially for providing following mess services to the boarders of JMCH hostel. The scope of work, covered by the contract, is broadly but not extensively described as given below:

- **b.** Cooking and serving meals- Breakfast (Morning), Lunch and Dinner. Each meal will be served over a period of 1 ½ (One and a half) hours.
- **c.** Procurement of raw material as per specification given in Part-IV
- **d.** Managing and control of stocks and inventories
- e. Coupon sales. Boarders may use these coupons to get 'extra' items not included in the basic menu of the mess
- f. Cleaning of utensils, kitchen and serving items
- **g.** Cleaning of cooking, dining and auxiliary areas
- **h.** Security of the equipment, utensils and other items in the mess
- i. Maintenance of the equipment in the kitchen and dining areas
- j. Maintenance of books, ledgers, other records and documents related to running of the mess
- **k.** Deployment and supervision of required manpower for the above-mentioned job
- I. Contract shall be initially for a period of 01 year that may be extended for a period of another year on same terms and conditions as mentioned in the Tender Documents with mutual consent with the authority.
- m. Tentative Period of mess operation: as per Academic Calendar of JMC

In case the vacation is extended/reduced or re-scheduled, the supplier will be paid based on the actual number of days food was served for students.

o. Tentative Timing of Mess

Breakfast: 07.00 am to 8.30 am

Lunch: 12: 30 pm to 2.00 pm

Snacks: 04.00 pm to 5.00 pm

Dinner: 08.00 pm to 9.30 pm Normal operation schedule of JMCH.

p. However, Mess Committee reserves the right to extend or reduce the period of mess operation.

- q. The mess committee also reserves right to decide the timings for breakfast and each meal on different days. The mess committee may revise the timings over the year as per academic and other activities. The mess committee will inform the contractor about the changes in the timings well in advance.
- r. <u>Sample Mess Menu</u> The mess committee shall provide basic menu, which shall continue for a minimum period as notified, once agreed upon mutually between Mess Committee and the Contractor. The mess committee reserves the right to change the menu from time to time. Any change in the menu shall be communicated in writing, adequately in advance, to the contractor. <u>The Basic Meal Plan in accordance with the norms contained in Annexure-II shall be executed.</u>
- s. In addition to above, the contractor shall be required to provide extra mess facilities against additional payment basis to the boarders of hostel in respect of items not covered under the Basic Meal Plan. Under such circumstances, the contractor shall be required to proportionately enrich the dinner/ lunch/ breakfast, as decided by the mess committee. Menu once decided shall continue for a minimum period of one month.
- t. <u>List of Boarders</u> The list of boarders, who will compulsorily join the mess, shall be provided by the Warden/Mess Committee from time to time. The number of boarders may vary depending upon academic sessions and vacations.
- u. The Mess premises comprising, cooking and dining facilities, furniture, appliances shall be provided by the Institute free of cost. However, raw material containers, water, crockery, kitchen equipment, cleaning / washing materials / tools and manpower to properly maintain this infrastructure shall be arranged by the contractor at his own cost.
- v. The contractor should hire/ enter into agreement with Pest-Control Agency to keep the mess area infection/mosquito/rat free and cost incurred on it shall be borne by contractor.

- 1. Maintenance of Inventory The inventory of articles shall be handed over to the contractor in good and working condition at the commencement of the contract. The contractor shall the custodian of this Institute's properties and mess inventory during the period of contract and shall make good any loss to the inventory by way of misuse, breakage, theft, etc., at his own cost.
- 2. Refund of Security Deposit Similarly the inventory in good condition shall be handed over by the contractor to the mess committee on the expiry of the contract period. The security deposit shall be refunded only after a "No Dues Certificate" granted by the Mess Committee.
- 3. The requirement, furniture and appliances shall be provided by hostel administration. However, the serviceability and repairing of the utensils, furniture and appliances shall be done and ensured by the contractor at his own cost.
- 4. <u>Use of Electricity</u> The contractor shall not be allowed to use electricity as a cooking fuel. However, he shall be permitted to use toasters, refrigerators, water coolers, mixer / grinder, oven and other equipment for cutting/grilling vegetables, etc. Any other electrical cooking appliance may also be used by the contractor after obtaining prior permission of the Mess Committee / Warden in writing.
- 5. Storage and Food The food shall be cooked, stored and served under hygienic conditions. The contractor shall ensure that only freshly cooked food is served, and that stale food is not recycled. Stale food shall be removed from the mess premises as soon as possible. Un- refrigerated cooked food, not consumed within 6 (six) hours in summer and 10 (ten) hours in winter, shall be deemed to be stale and unfit for consumption.
- **6.** The food shall be cooked and served in clean utensils and no laxity shall be permitted in this regard. The utensils shall have to be maintained sparkling clean at all time.
- 7. The contractor shall pay special attention to maintain the mess in a neat and tidy condition at all times. For this purpose, the mess shall be cleaned thoroughly after each meal.
- 8. Removal of Waste Materials from the Mess Area The waste material and unused/leftover food from mess will be removed from mess premises every day. The

- contractor will ensure that all the waste material and unused/leftover food should be disposed off properly at the place designated by the institute for the purpose. The contractor will also ensure that stray cattle, such as monkeys, pigs, dogs, cows, etc., do not consume any food within the mess premises.
- 9. Quality of Food The contractor shall procure only good quality fresh vegetables from the market. He shall not be allowed to store the vegetables for more than 1 (one) day in summer and 3 (three) days in winter at a stretch. However, the contractor shall ensure that a sufficient stock of other raw materials are stocked in the store for consumption for a minimum period of 15 (fifteen) days. The mess committee shall have the right to check the quality of food articles and vegetables from time to time.
- **10.** The food shall be neither too spicy nor too oily. Food should be wholesome and shall cater to the taste of the boarders.
- **11.** The oil that remains from deep frying at the end of the day shall have to be destroyed and shall not be allowed to be recycled for the purpose of cooking again.
- 12. Operational Period of Mess The mess will normally be operational for at least 9 months in a year. No payment shall be made to contractor when mess is closed. The mess may be closed during the vacations at the discretion of Institute. The actual dates of these vacations are decided well in advance and are readily available in the institute academic calendar. The decision of the institute regarding the running of mess during the vacation shall be final and binding on the contractor. During the academic session the mess will not be allowed to be closed on any day, including Sundays and other holidays, for any reasons whatsoever.
- 13. In case of any sudden holidays or closure of institute, due to unforeseen reasons, the contractor shall be paid as per the actual number of days for which the mess was operational for the month.
- 14. Period of mess operation: Last week of July to 1st week of December and Last week of December to 1st week of June. Institute shall pay food cost / per day / per Students to contractor only for these periods. There is also a provision of a weeklong recess during academic session and that will be intimated by Mess to Committee contractor in advance.

A.

PART – III BRAND OF ITEMS

The contractor shall procure wholesome food articles of standard quality in consultation with and to the satisfaction of the Mess Committee.

Note:

- 1. It will be the responsibility of contractor to ensure the purchase of superior quality items, in the case of rice, pulses, vegetables, etc. also along with other branded items. If it is found that, contractor is deviating from the specified brand or standard, he shall be penalized accordingly, and Mess Committee may also decide for the termination of contract after repetitive deliberate negligence / mistake.
- 2. The caterer may use any other FSSAI approved brands also, if permitted by the Mess Committee in writing.
- 3. The mess committee shall have the right to change any brand provided the cost does not exceed the specified brand.
- 4. The institute may send their representative along with contractor while purchasing the non-perishable items like rice, dal, atta etc. to ensure the purchase of branded items, as mentioned above.

begetarian and Non-Vegetarian food will be cooked and served separately.

For Cafeteria Service a fixed menu as mentioned under will be displayed in the front of esk.

FIX MENU FINALIZED BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR ALL WILL BE AVAILABLE '24X7'

SL NO	NAME OF ITEMS	ESTIMATEDRATE AS PER ITEM INCLUSIVETAXES	QUANTITY
1	PURISABJI	20	3PICPURI+MIXSABZI
2	ROTISABJI	20	2PICROTI+MIXSABZI
3	PLAINPARATHA	20	1PIC+MIXSABZI
4	ALOOPARATHA	30	1PIC+MIXSABZI
5	VEGSANDWICH	30	150GRM
6	NONVEG SANDWICH	40	150GRM
7	EGGBOIL	10	1PIC
8	OMLET	15	SINGLEEGG
9	MAGGIE	20	100GRM
10	BURGER(VEG)	25	150GRM
11	NONVEG BURGER	35	150GRM
12	VEGPATTIES	10	150GRM
13	EGGPATTIES	15	150GRM
14	CHICKENPATTIES	20	150GRM
15	CUTLETVEG	20	2PIC (120GRM)
16	CUTLETNON- VEG	30	2PIC (120GRM)
17	SAMOSA	10	125GRM
18	KOCHOURI	10	125GRM
19	VEG-PAKORA8PIECES	35	150GRM
20	CHICKEN-PAKORA8PIECES	50	150GRM
21	PANEER-PAKORA8PIECES	45	150GRM
22	VEGROLL	25	200GRM
23	EGGROLL	35	215GRM
24	CHICKENROLL	40	200GRM
25	SPECIALROLL(MIXWITHEGGANDCHICKEN)	50	225GRM
26	PANEERROLL	40	200GRM
27	VEGCHOWMEIN	25	150GRM
28	EGGCHOWMEIN	35	175GRM
29	CHICKENCHOWMEIN	45	200GRM
30	SPECIALCHOWMEIN	55	225GRM
31	RICETHALI(VEG)	45	Rice,Daal,Mix Veg,Dry Bhaji,Pickle/Chatni,Nimbu
32	RICETHALI(NON-VEGLOCALCHICKEN)	100	VegThali+LocalChicken4pc curry/gravy
33	RICETHALI(NON-VEGBOILERCHICKEN)	75	VegThali+Chicken4pc curry/gravy
34	RICETHALI(WITHFISH)	70	VegThali +Fish1pc curry/gravy

Mess Menu

Basic Menu: The following mentioned breakfast, lunch and dinner shall be served every day (except the closure day) in unlimited quantity on a SELF SERVICE basis.

Breakfast: The breakfast will include one fruit daily (banana can be given on a maximum of 3 days per week and other fruits on rest 4 days). It will also include eggs and Sprouts on alternate days. Sprouts must contain at least three items each of which should be available separately.

FOR VEGETERIANS- egg must be replaced with items like curd, sweets etc.

One among the following indicative items shall be served on a particular day. The schedule of the items for a week/month shall be decided by the hostel MMC in consultation with the contractor.

(i) Varieties of Paratha (Aloo/Gobhietc), Green Chutney, Pickle (ii) Roti, Sabji (iii) Masala Dosa, Sambar, Groundnut/Coconut Chutney (iv) Poha, Yellow Peas Curry (v) Bread-Jam/Butter(7 slices of dimension 10 x 10 x 1 cm) with 20 grams of butter or with 10 grams of butter and 10 grams of fruit jam.) (vi) Poori, Sabji.

Special Dish: One additional item (chicken/paneer dish) shall be served along with the basic menu every Sunday.

SAMPLE ROUTINE FOOD ITEMS

BREAKFAST:

MONDAY	PURI-KABULI/ALOO BHAJI, FRUITS, TEA.
TUESDAY	ROTI- GHUGNI, FRUITS, EGG, TEA.
WEDNESDAY	PARATHA, CHANA DAL, FRUITS, TEA.
THURSDAY	BBJ (BREAD BUTTER JAM), (TOASTED BREAD), EGG, FRUIT, TEA.
FRIDAY	PURI – GHUGNI, POHA, FRUIT, TEA.
SATURDAY	FRIED RICE, CHANA DAL, FRUITS, TEA.
SUNDAY	ALOO PARATHA, CURD,KABULI, FRUITS,EGG,TEA

LUNCH

MONDAY	JEERA RICE,DAL,DRY VEG(BHAJI),VEG CURRY
TUESDAY	PLAIN RICE,DAL,DRY VEG(BHAJI),VEG CURRY
WEDNESDAY	VEG PULAO, SPECIAL CURRY, CHUTNEY.
THURSDAY	PLAIN RICE,DAL,DRY VEG(BHAJI),VEG CURRY
FRIDAY	PLAIN RICE,DAL,DRY VEG(BHAJI),VEG CURRY
SATURDAY	PLAIN RICE,DAL,DRY VEG(BHAJI),VEG CURRY
SUNDAY	PULAO,CHILLI CHICKEN / PANEER MASALA, SWEET

EVENING SNACKS

MONDAY	TEA,PIYAJI
TUESDAY	TEA,ALOO STUFF BREAD CHOP
WEDNESDAY	TEA,BISCUIT, BHUJIA
THURSDAY	TEA,SAMOSA
FRIDAY	TEA, MAGGIE
SATURDAY	TEA,ALOO CHOP
SUNDAY	TEA,PAKORA

DINNER

MONDAY	PLAIN RICE / ROTI,FISH CURRY,DAL,DRY VEG.
TUESDAY	PLAIN RICE / ROTI,EGG CURRY,DAL,DRY VEG.
WEDNESDAY	PLAIN RICE / ROTI,MUTTON,DAL,DRY VEG

THURSDAY	PLAIN RICE/ ROTI,MASALA PANEER,DAL DRY VEG,SWEET
FRIDAY	FRIED RICE / ROTI,CHICKEN CURRY,DAL,DRY VEG
SATURDAY	PLAIN RICE / ROTI,FISH CURRY,MURI GHONTA,DAL,DRY VEG,
SUNDAY	PLAIN RICE/ ROTI,MASALA PANEER,DAL DRY VEG,SWEET

DINNER (FOR VEG) in replacement of major curry item

MONDAY	VEG MANCHURIAN
TUESDAY	PANNER CURRY
WEDNESDAY	RAJMA CURRY
THURSDAY	-same as basic routine-
FRIDAY	CHOLA (KABULI CHANA)
SATURDAY	PANNER CURRY
SUNDAY	MALAI KOFTA

13. For sick students, the contractor shall arrange to serve "sick diet" at their rooms. The sick diet shall be defined and provided by mess committee to the contractor. DINING TIMINGS

Breakfast – 07:00 A.M - 8:30 A.M Lunch - 12:30 PM- 2:30 PM) Dinner - 08:00 PM – 10: 00 PM

Live Counter: A live counter is to be operational during the mess timings (7AM to 10-00 PM), and is to make and serve the following indicative items upon demand by the students on extra payment basis the rate which will be decided by the MMC in consultation with the contractor from time to time. The following extra items must be available and to be served at the live counter.

Important: This menu will be followed in the hostel but can also be changed as per the requirement of hostel/recommendation of the mess committee. Special meals shall be served once in a month on the day as decided by Mess Committee.

PART- IV

Catering Contract Terms and Conditions along with responsibilities of caterer. The Mess facility at JMCH on the campus consists of a kitchen and dining hall. The important terms and Conditions are listed below for the convenience of contractor:

- <u>Evaluation of Performance</u> The institute Mess committee or administration may take up periodical or sudden check at the mess to ensure quality of the food provided to the boarders.
- 2. Performance Security Within 7 days of execution of the mess contract, the caterer will be required to execute the performance security deposit, equivalent to <u>5% of annual contract value in the form of a FD/BG issued on the name of 'JMCH TENDER' payable at Jorhat</u> should be from a scheduled nationalized bank, and will be held against any defaulting in performance and violation of terms and conditions. This Bank Guarantee shall be effective for entire contract period.
- 3. <u>License Fee</u> The catering contractor has to pay a license fee/royalty fees of Rs. 30000/- per month for the contract period OR at such rate as may be fixed by the institute for the subsequent period, if the contract is extended
- 4. Labour Law Compliance: The successful mess contractor should have registered himself with the Labour Commissioner, Assam as a contractor under the Contract Labour Regulation Act and should have obtained a Labour License and should complete all required formalities
- **5.** The following rules should be followed:
 - a. The caterer should adhere to the provisions of the Provident Fund Act, ESI Act, The Central Labour Commissioner Minimum Wages Act and other such acts which are applicable.
 - b. The caterer should ensure that the payment is made to the labourers as per Central Labour Commissioner Minimum Minimum wages act to the satisfaction of the licensee.
 - c. The <u>Caterer shall not employ child labour</u> and upon violation legal action would be taken.
- **Maintenance of Civil & Electrical Work** Major civil and electrical works will be attended by JMCH. Minor maintenance jobs such as replacement of light bulbs, tube lights, maintenance of fan etc. will be the responsibility of the catering contractor.

- 7. Maintenance of Stock Registers The stock entry of Kitchen equipment, cutlery, Cookery and furniture, etc., which is provided by the JMCH Mess Committee and brought by the Contractor will be maintained in JMCH Mess Office in both the Hard and Soft copy format.
 - Refilling of commercial cylinders and procurement of good quality grocery/ provisions and other consumables will be the responsibility of the caterer.
- **9.** RO Water System should be installed by the contractor for uninterrupted supply of water.
- **10.** Electricity will be borne by the contractor
- 11. Running water will be provided from JMCH
- **Security and Maintenance of Fixed Assets** -Security and maintenance of licensed equipment, fittings and fixtures, furniture etc. will be the responsibility of the catering contractor.
- **13.** Cleaning and Housekeeping of kitchen and dining area will be the sole responsibility of the caterer.
- **14.** Cleaning of utensils, cutlery, crockery, kitchen equipment etc. is also responsibility of the caterer. The highest possible standards are expected in this regard.
- 15. All possible measures must be taken to ensure hygiene in the kitchen and mess. These include the provision of ample liquid soap for hand wash at basin, clean towels to clean hand, hand gloves for mess workers, who handle items like salad, panipuri, papad, etc., head caps for mess workers and other measures as advised by the Mess Committee.
- **16.** Mess Committee of JMCH, Jorhat reserves the right to check on cleanliness and upkeep of premises and quality of provisions, and quality of the food.
- **17.** The caterer shall attend a monthly meeting of the mess committee, failing which a penalty will be imposed.
- **18.** One of the supervisors should be entrusted the duty of quality control and hygiene.

PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OR RULES

The caterer will be fined in case of violation of the following rules:

1. Non-availability of complaint register on the counter/discouraging members from registering complaints would lead to a fine of Rs. 2,000/- on the caterer each occasion.

Any complaints of insects and/or foreign object (hair, rope, cloth, plastic, etc) cooked along with food found in any food item would invite a fine of Rs. 1,000/- on every occasion on the caterer.

- Any complaint of stones / pebbles of diameter will attract a penalty on the caterer of Rs. 2000/- on every occasion depending on the size of the stone / pebble.
- **4. Hard and/or sharp objects** like glass pieces, nails, hard plastic etc. will attract a penalty of at least Rs. 5000/- per incident.
- **5. Food poisoning**, shall invoke a hefty fine beyond the limit of any fine mentioned above, along with cancellation of contract and possible blacklisting of the caterer.
- **6. 03** or more complaints of unclean utensils would lead to a fine of Rs. 3,000/- on the caterer on each occasion.
- 7. If mess committee agrees that **certain meal was not cooked properly** then a fine of Rs. 3,000/- would be imposed on the caterer on each occasion.
- **8.** If food for any meal gets over within timings of mess and waiting time is more than 30 minutes for breakfast or lunch or dinner, then a fine of Rs. 2,000/- would be imposed on the caterer. The timing for that meal will be extended equivalent to delay time.
- **9. If the quality of milk is not found up to be appropriate**, or it is diluted, a fine of 2,000/- would be imposed on each occasion.
- **10.** Changes in menu of any meal (including fruit/juice/milkshake) without permission of mess committee would result in a fine of Rs. 5,000/- to the caterer.
- 11. Inappropriate personal hygiene of workers including their dress personal hygiene of workers and/or misbehavior by workers etc. will lead to fine of Rs. 2000/- on caterer for every instance.
- **12.** Failure to maintain a proper health check up of the workers will attract a fine of Rs. 4,000/- per instance.

- 13. Absence of proprietor or his representative empowered to take decision from mess committee meetings on due invitation (which will be held once every month) will attract a fine of Rs. 10,000/- on caterer.
- **14.** As and when mess committee proposes a fine, it will inform the representative of the caterer or mess manager and fine will be imposed.
- 15. Using of brands not mentioned in the contract without prior permission and adulteration shall invoke a hefty fine beyond the limit of any fine mentioned above and decided by the Mess Committee.
- **16.** Severity of hygiene failure shall be assessed and decided by the mess committee and fined appropriately. In case of gross failure/negligence a severe penalty will be imposed, which could be a hefty fine as cash and/or summarily Termination of the Contract.
- 17. <u>Notice Period</u> The notice period for the termination will be 30 days. If a contractor disobeys the rule made by the JMCH Mess Committee, repeatedly commits the same mistake then the contract shall be terminated immediately without any notice. Further caterer would be blacklisted by the institute.
- **18.** Caterer would not have any right to put any charges/blaming on any of the JMCH Mess Committee members as they are serving voluntarily to the JMCH.
- 19. Only people who pay, gets the food. No other people including security men, or any other staff gets free of cost food for any reason. (Exception- food quality supervision).

N.B.: Any penalties/fines imposed on the caterer would be deducted from their payment of the same month itself.

C. <u>PART- VI</u>

ENGAGEMENT AND DEPLOYMENT OF MANPOWER FOR MESS SERVICES AND CAFETERIA SERVICE

Note: Detailed calculation of wage and salary of above the staff has been provided in Annexure-I for the reference of contractor

Contractor will be required to engage above mentioned staff under Highly Skilled, Skilled, Semi-Skilled and Unskilled categories or categories as specified by JMCH from time to time.



<u>Details of Workers</u> - The contractor shall submit a list of workers, with complete details including local/ permanent addresses, contact details, and their photographs etc, for approval which may be allowed to work at the mess. The Warden/Mess Committee may reject any or all the names without assigning any reason thereof. Only those workers who have been cleared by the Mess Committee/ Warden/warden shall be allowed to enter into the premises of the mess. The above workmen shall be placed at all the times under exclusive supervision of the contractor.

- 2. Payment of Minimum Wages Salaries of these staffs shall be governed by State Labour Commission Minimum Wage Rates Act. Contractor must be aware that 'State Labour Commissioner' revises minimum wages from time to time. If there shall be any upward revision in the minimum wages during the contract period, contractor shall make the payments to staff accordingly and JMCH, Jorhat shall not be pay the differential amount. Also the contractor shall be responsible for opening of bank account of each employee to nearby bank on their own cost in order to transfer the salaries of employee directly to their account.
- **3.** Contractor shall also ensure that each and every employee is covered under the provisions of ESI Act 1948 and EPF Act1952.
- 4. The Employees' Provident Fund (EPF) and Employee State Insurance Commission (ESIC) contribution in respect of all employees shall be submitted by the contractor on the production of challan / receipt copy along with the monthly bill in respect of mess workers engaged/ serving for JMCH, Jorhat students' mess.
- **5.** Contractor shall issue salary slip to all staff members engaged and shall remit the salary in the staffs Account through net-banking to ensure the timely payment.

- 6. The contractor shall compulsorily submit the proofs of payments towards PF, ESIC and Service Tax (if applicable) dues of previous month for claiming subsequent month's payment.
- 7. Payment date of Salary to the Work men- The Contractor has to pay the salary to workmen by 7th of every month for immediate previous months work without waiting for clearance of his pending bills.
- 8. Maintenance of Attendance Record- The contractor has to maintain a proper attendance record of all the workmen and that shall be certified by Mess Committee/Warden. A copy of the same record shall be submitted every month along with the Bill for Payment.
 - **9.** The contractor has to ensure that their employees will protect the institute's information received during discharge of their duties from any unauthorized disclosure to third party(ies) without permission.
 - **10.** The mess workers shall be available for work for more than one shift staggered over 12 hours. However, the total hours of work taken in a day shall not exceed 08 hours.
 - 11. The mess committee reserves the right to check the attendance of the mess workers from time to time and in case of deficiency in deployment of manpower found, penalty shall be imposed. For each shortfall and recovery shall be made for a period to be assessed by the mess committee and in this regard, decision of Mess Committee shall be final and binding.
 - **12.** The contractor shall not be allowed to use the hostel or mess premises to offer any messing facility beyond the scope of the contract unless agreed to by Mess Committee.
 - 13. For sick students, the contractor shall arrange to serve "sick diet" at their rooms. The sick diet shall be defined and provided by mess committee to the contractor.
 - 14. Responsibility of providing uniform to the Mess Staff Contractor / Firm shall provide dress to all mess staff and they will compulsorily wear it while on duty. The uniform shall be WHITE SHIRT, BLACK PANT & WHITE CHEF CAP (or any other colour and style of the uniform shall be decided with the consultation of Mess Committee) and have the words "HOSTEL DIET". The staff shall wear clean and

- ironed uniform while on duty.
- 15. The contractor shall employ only healthy adult and trained staff with good health and sound mind for all services. He shall also nominate a qualified and experienced manager, acceptable to the institute to take orders/instructions from the mess committee, the Warden/ Mess Committee or any other authorized representative of the institute. Considering the present situation, all employees must undergo RAT test mandatory from time to time as required.
- 16. Responsibility of providing Medically Fit Mess Staff The contractor shall ensure that all employees engaged by him are free from communicable/ infectious disease and are also medically fit to work at mess. Medical officers specified by the Mess Committee shall conduct medical examination on every 6 (Six) months or as decided by the Institute. The cost of the medical examination will be borne by the contractor. If in the opinion of the institute any of the contractor's employee(s) is found to be suffering from any such disease / condition or if any employee(s) of the contractor is found to have committed misconduct or misbehavior, the Mess Committee/Warden shall have the right to ask the contractor to remove such employee(s) without questioning the decision of the institute. The Institute shall be entitled to restrain such employee (s) from entering the mess premise. Thereafter, the contractor shall have to provide a substitute(s) within a reasonable time.
- 17. Follow the Security & Safety Regulations of the Institute- The contractor shall be responsible for his employees in observing all security and safety regulations and instructions as may be issued by the Institute from time to time. The contractor shall have the right to appoint and to take appropriate disciplinary actions against his workers to fulfill his obligations under this agreement, provided that, action should be taken in accordance with Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act, 1946 and the Mess Committee/ Warden should be informed at every point of time. However, the contractor shall not in any capacity employ any person(s) of bad character or any person whose antecedents are not acceptable to the Institute.
- 18. <u>Behavior of Mess Staff</u> The contractor shall be responsible for the courteous behavior of all their staff, employed directly or indirectly, and shall exercise a proper degree of control over them and in particular and without prejudice to the said generality. The contractor shall be bound to prohibit and prevent employees from

- trespassing/acting in anyway detrimental or prejudicial to the interest of the community or of the properties. The contractor shall be responsible thereof and indemnify the institute of all consequent claims or actions for damages or injury or on any other grounds whatsoever. The decision of the Mess Committee on any matter, arising under this clause shall be final.
- 19. In case, the Institute suffers loss of any nature on account of the contractor or his employees for not following security/ safety regulation/instructions, the contractor shall be liable to make good the loss as determined by the Institute at its sole discretion and the institute shall have the right to recover such losses, etc., from the dues payable to the contractor and/or security deposit, etc.
- 20. The contractor shall not appoint any sub- contractor for the work assigned to him without the written permission of the Mess Committee. Also, no part of the contract, nor any share or interest therein shall in any manner or degree be transferred, assigned or sublet by the contractor directly or indirectly to any person, firm or whosoever.
- 21. The contractor staff shall not be treated as the institute's staff for any purpose whatsoever. The contractor shall be responsible for strict compliance of all statutory provisions of relevant labour laws applicable from time to time in carrying out the above job. The institute shall not be liable to any penalty under relevant labour rules, enactment or related regulations for which the contractor is responsible under the law. However, if the institute is forced to pay any cost of any nature on account of the contractor's liabilities, the said cost shall be recovered from the dues payable to the contractor.
- 22. Fulfillment of Statutory Provisions- The contractor shall be responsible for fulfilling the requirement for all statutory provisions of relevant enactments viz. Minimum Wages Act, Payment of Wages Act, Industrial Disputes Act, Contract labour (Regulations and Abolition) Act and all other labour and industrial enactment at his own risk and cost in respect of all staff employed by him. The Institute shall be indemnified for any action brought against it for any violation/non-compliance of any of the provisions of any of the acts, etc. Hence, non-compliance or violation of any of these provisions of any of the Acts would lead to the immediate termination of the contract. The contractor shall maintain all records required to be maintained under

statutory enactments and the Warden and his authorized representatives shall be entitled to inspect all such records at anytime.

Insurance of Workmen's - The contractor shall, at his own expense, take workmen's compensation insurance and he shall also obtain from his underwriter of such insurance a waiver of subrogation in favour of the Institute. The contractor shall further, at his own expense, register claims and pursue realization of all insurance claims. He shall produce proof of such insurance within a reasonable time (say 15 days approx.) from the date of award of contract. The mess workers/manager shall not be allowed to stay in the hostel premises or in the institute campus.

- **24.** Smoking and drinking within the entire area of the Institute campus are strictly prohibited. Violators of this rule shall be prosecuted as per law.
- 25. If and when required by the Institute, all personnel deployed by contractor at JMCH, Jorhat will be required to display ID card while entering into the institute premises. They will also require to wear the ID Card all time while on duty.
- 26. Accident or Injury to Workmen-The Institute shall not be liable for any damage or compensation payable in respect of or in consequence of any accident or injury to any workmen or other person in the employment of the contractor through claim from insurance company. The contractor shall indemnify and keep the Institute indemnified against all such damage and compensation whatsoever in respect or in relation thereto.
- 27. <u>Damage to Property-</u> The contractor shall be responsible for making good to the satisfaction of the Mess Committee for any kind of loss or damage to any structures and properties within the mess premises. If such loss or damage is due to fault and/ or the negligence or willful acts or omission of the contractor, his employees, agents, representatives or sub-contractors, shall make good the loss as assessed by the Mess Committee.

28. Safety Regulations-

In respect of all labour, employed directly or indirectly by contractor to perform the assigned job as part of the agreement, the contractor shall make necessary arrangements for the safety and security of workmen at his own cost under as per safety codes of the CPWD, Indian Standards Institution, the Electricity Act, regulations, rules and orders made there under and such other acts as applicable.

Regarding compliance of statutory provisions-

The Institute is registered in terms of the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 with the Registering Officer under the Labour Commissioner. As such, the contractor shall be required to obtain requisite license from the office of the Regional Labour Commissioner under the afore mentioned Act.

- **31.** The contractor shall have his own set-up including registration under the relevant laws governing the type of work he is to perform.
- **32.** The contractor shall abide by all the rules and regulations of the Labour Laws and Rules framed there under and maintain all the registers required under the above mentioned Act, Rules and regulations, including the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970.
- **33.** The contractor shall be liable to comply with the Employees' State Insurance (ESI) Act, 1948 and Employees' Provident Fund (EPF) and Miscellaneous Act 1952.
- 34. The contractor shall be liable to deduct the employees' contribution of EPF and ESI and deposit the same along with the his part of the contribution to the respective authorities within the statutory periods and shall provide a copy of the deposit challan under his signature to the institute within one week of depositing the same to the respective authorities.
- **35.** The contractor shall pay wages directly to the workmen without any intervention of any labour contractor. The contractor shall also ensure that no amount by way of commission or otherwise is deducted from the wages of the workmen.
- **36.** All employees of the contractor shall carry Employment/ Identity Cards issued by the contractor at all times, in terms of Rule 76 of the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) State Rules, 1971.

D. PART- VII

Rates of meal and terms of payment

1. The bidder shall only quote the rate of food per meal (including all taxes & charges)

Financial Bid (to be available as BOQ).

- 2. Bidder will be required to quote the price of food per student per day. They will also be required to quote the prices for add on items in **Form-VII**.
- 3. If two or more firms quoted same, contract will be awarded to the firm who have maximum turn over during last three years and maximum previous experience of providing similar service.
- **4.** <u>Criteria for Evaluation of Financial Bid</u> Financial Bid, received without proper format shall be summarily rejected, even that their price is lowest.
- Wages and salaries of mess staff shall be paid as per Assam State Minimum Wage Rates.
- 6. The prices/rates accepted by the contractor shall remain firm till the completion of contract, except the new taxes enacted by government during contract period and applicable to this institute. The prices/rates shall be deemed to include and cover all costs, expenses and liabilities of every description and all risks of every kind to be taken in executing the work.
- 7. The contractor shall be deemed to have known the nature, scope, magnitude and the extent of the work and material required though the contract may not have fully and precisely incorporated them. The opinion of the Mess Committee as to the items of work which are necessary and reasonable for completion of the work shall be final and binding on the contractor although the same may not be shown on or described specifically in contract documents.
- **8.** The aforementioned rates shall remain in force for one year from the date of commencement of the work and during this period the rate shall not be revised.
- 9. The rates so fixed will be inclusive of all taxes, duties, and levies etc. imposed by the State government and Local Bodies as on the date of award of the work, However, if any new tax, duty or levy is imposed or enhanced by the Government / Local Bodies subsequent to the award of work, the same shall be reimbursed on production of proof of payment.
- 10. The contractor will raise bill on monthly basis.

Section VI – Bidding Forms

Letter of Bid¹

The Bidder must prepare the Letter of Bid on its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and address.

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing these forms and shall be deleted from the final products.

Date of Bid Submission: 15/10/2024 upto 12.00 Noon

Bid Ref. No.: [SMEJ/JMCH/2866/2024/4080 dtd:19/09/2024]

To:

Principal cum Chief Superintendent, Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat

- (a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB10);
- (b) We meet the eligibility requirements and have no Conflict of Interest in accordance with ITB4;
- (c) We offer to supply in conformity with the Bidding Documents and in accordance with the Completion Schedules specified in the Activity Schedule the following Non-Consultancy Services

:[Outsourcing of Hostel Mess Diet Catering alongwith Cafeteria Services at JMCH];

- (d) The total price of our Bid is specified in the Priced Activity Schedule.
- (e) Our bid shall be valid for a period fixed from the bid submission deadline in accordance with the Bidding Documents, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (f) If our bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with the Bidding Documents;
- (g) We are not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one bid in this bidding process in accordance with ITB 4.3(e), other than alternative bids submitted in accordance with ITB13;
- (h) We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not debarred by any procuring entity under the State Government, the Central Government or any State Government or any Public Undertaking, Autonomous body, Authority by whatever name called under them;
- (i) We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf will engage in any activities which is in contravention of the Code of Integrity proscribed in ITB Para 3 of the Bidding Documents

- (j) We hereby certify that we are neither associated nor has been associated directly or indirectly with the consultant or any other entity that has prepared the design, specifications and other documents for the subject matter of procurement or is being proposed as Project Manager for the contract
- (k) We hereby certify that we have fulfilled our obligations to pay all such taxes as payable to the Central Government or the State Government or any local authority;
- (I) We hereby certify that we are not insolvent, in receivership, bankrupt or being wound up, not have its affairs administered by a court or a judicial officer, not have its business activities suspended and must not be the subject of legal proceedings for any of the foregoing reasons;
- (m) We hereby certify that our directors and officers have not been convicted of any criminal offence related to their professional conduct or the making of false statements or misrepresentations as to their qualifications to enter into a procurement contract within a period of three years preceding the commencement of the procurement process, or not have been otherwise disqualified pursuant to debarment proceedings;
- (n) We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed; and
- (o) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any other bid that you may receive.

Name of the Bidder	
Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder	
Title of the person signing the Bid	
Signature of the person named above	
Date signed	

Bidder Information Form

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

Date of Bid Submission: 15/10/2024 upto 12.00 Noon

Bid Ref. No.: SMEJ/JMCH2866/2024/4080 Dated: 19/09/2024

1.Bidder's Name [insert Bidder's legal name]			
2.Bidder's year of registration : [insert Bidder's year of registration]			
3. Bidder's Address: [insert Bidder's legal address]			
4. Bidder's Authorized Representative Information			
Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name]			
Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address]			
Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers]			
Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]			
5. Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]			
Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB4.3.			
 Organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership. 			
□ Income Tax Registration Document / PAN Card			
□ GSTIN Registration Certificate			
□ Any other document			

Form of Priced Activity Schedule

FINANCIAL BID

(To be available in the e-portal: www.assamtenders.gov.in as BOQ)

(No hardcopy of FINANCIAL BID will be submitted by the bidder alongwith Tender Document.

The rates should be quoted inclusive of all charges including GST.	
Quote showing any charges separately will not be considered.	

SI. No.	Description	Amount (Rs.) (Inclusive of GST)	
		Ìn figure	In words
L.X	Rate per day-per student per meal		
909	(for breakfast, Lunch, Snacks,		
	Dinner)		

These prices include all kind of material cost and profit margin (including manpower cost) of contractor.

N.B: If two or more firms quoted same, contract will be awarded to the firm who have maximum turn over during last three years and maximum previous experience of providing similar service.

Place	
Date	(Signature of the Bidder, with Official Seal

Form of Bid Security

(Bank Guarantee)

[The bank shall fill in this Bank Guarantee Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Beneficiary: [Procuring Entity to insert its name and address]

Bid Ref. No.: [Procuring Entity to insert reference number for the Invitation for Bids]

Date: [Insert date of issue]

BID GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the

letterhead]

We have been informed that *__[insert name of the Bidder,]* (hereinafter called "the Applicant") will submit to the Beneficiary its bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of under Bid Ref. No. ("the Bidding Documents").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary's conditions, bids must be supported by a bid guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of (___) upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand, supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that either the Applicant:

- (a) has withdrawn its Bid during the period of bid validity set forth in the Applicant's Letter of Bid ("the Bid Validity Period"), or any extension there to provided by the Applicant; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary during the Bid Validity Period or any extension thereto provided by the Applicant, (i) has failed to execute the contract agreement, or (ii) has failed to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Beneficiary's bidding document.

This guarantee will expire:(a) if the Applicant is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract agreement signed by the Applicant and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such contract agreement; or(b) if the Applicant is not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i)our receipt of a copy of the Beneficiary's notification to the Applicant of the results of the bidding process; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the end of the Bid Validity Period.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office indicated above on or before that date.												
This	bank	guarantee	will	be	verified 	through	the	official	email	id	of	bank
[Sign	ature(s	5)]										

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

Proforma for Other Details of Bidder and its Bank

- 1. Name & full address of the Bidder:
- 2. (a) Telephone & Fax No
 - (b) Email
- 3. Details of two Persons that Procuring Entity may contact for requests for clarification during bid evaluation:

	1st	2nd
(i) Name:		
(ii) Tel number (direct):		
(iii) Mobile No.		
(iv) Email address		

- 4. Bank details from where the Bank Guarantee for Bid Security has been issued:
- (i) Name and address of the Bank:
- (ii) Name of the contact Person
- (iii) Phone number/Mobile
- (iv) Fax Number
- (v) Email address

Signature and seal of the Bidder

Section VII - General Conditions of Contract

1. General Provisions

Definitions Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:

- (a) "Activity Schedule" is the priced and completed list of items of Services to be performed by the Service Provider forming part of his Bid;
- (b) "Completion Date" means the date of completion of the Services by the Service Provider as certified by the Procuring Entity;
- (c) "Contract" means the Contract signed by the Parties, to which these General Conditions of Contract (GCC) are attached, together with all the documents listed in Clause 1 of such signed Contract, as named in SCC;
- (d) "Contract Price" means the price to be paid for the performance of the Services, in accordance with Clause 6;
- (e) "Day works" means varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Service Provider's employees and equipment, in addition to payments for associated materials and administration;
- (f) "Procuring Entity" means the party who employs the Service Provider **as** specified in SCC.
- (g) "GCC" means these General Conditions of Contract;
- (h) "Government" means the Government of Assam;
- (i) "Member," in case the Service Provider consist of a joint venture of more than one entity, means any of these entities; "Members" means all these entities, and "Member in Charge" means the entity **specified in the SC** to act on their behalf in exercising all the Service Provider' rights and obligations towards the Procuring Entity under this Contract;
- (j) "Party" means the Procuring Entity or the Service Provider, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them;
- (k) "Personnel" means persons hired by the Service Provider or by any Subcontractor as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof;
- (I) "Service Provider" is a person or corporate body whose Bid to provide the Services has been accepted by the Procuring Entity **as specified in SCC**;
- (m) "Service Provider's Bid" means the completed Bidding Document submitted by the Service Provider to the Procuring Entity
- (n) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented;

- (o) "Specifications" means the specifications of the service included in the Bidding Document submitted by the Service Provider to the Procuring Entity
- (p) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract, as described in Appendix A; and in the Specifications and Schedule of Activities included in the Service Provider's Bid.
- (g) "Sub contractor" means any entity to which the Service Provider subcontracts any part of the Services in accordance with the provisions of Sub-Clauses 3.5 and 4.

Applicable Law The Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Union of India.

This Contract has been executed in the English language, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.

> Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the **SCC.** The term "in writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt. A notice shall be effective from the date of delivery or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later. In case of electronic mode of communication, a notice shall be effective from the time of sending of the electronic communication.

Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed, under this Contract by the Procuring Entity or the Service Provider may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SCC.

The Service Provider shall permit the Govt. of Assam and/or persons appointed by the Govt. of Assam to inspect the Site and/or the accounts and records relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Auditors appointed by the Govt. of Assam, if requested. Any act of the Service Provider that intended to materially impede the exercise of the Govt. of Assam's inspection and audit rights constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Govt. of Assam's prevailing sanctions procedures).

The Service Provider, Subcontractors, and their Personnel shall pay such taxes, duties, fees, and other impositions as may be levied under the Applicable Law, the amount of which is deemed to have been include in the Contract Price.

The Procuring Entity and all officers or employees of the Procuring Entity, whether involved in the procurement process or otherwise, or Service Provider and their

Language

Notices

representatives participating in a procurement process or other Persons involved, directly or indirectly in any way in a procurement process shall maintain an unimpeachable standard of integrity. Govt. of Assam prescribes to the Procuring Entity and Service Provider to uphold the Code of Integrity, which prohibit officers or employees of a Procuring Entity or a person participating in a procurement process the following:

- (i) any offer, solicitation or acceptance of any bribe, reward or gift or any material benefit, either directly or indirectly, in exchange for an unfair advantage in the procurement process or to otherwise influence the procurement process;
- (ii) any omission, including a misrepresentation that misleads or attempts to mislead so as to obtain a financial or other benefit or avoid an obligation;
- (iii) any collusion, bid rigging or anti-competitive behaviour to impair the transparency, fairness and progress of the procurement process;
- (iv) improper use of information shared between the procuring entity and the bidders with an intent to gain unfair advantage in the procurement process or for personal gain;
- (v) any financial or business transactions between the bidder and any officer or employee of the procuring entity, who are directly or indirectly related to tender or execution process of contract;
- (vi) any coercion including impairing or harming or threatening to do the same, directly or indirectly, to any party or to its property to influence the procurement process;
- (vii) any obstruction of any investigation or audit of a procurement process;
- (viii) making false declaration or providing false information for participation in-
- a) tender process or to secure a contract;
- b) disclosure of Conflict of Interest;
- discloser by the bidder of any previous transgressions with any entity in India or any other country during the last three years or of any debarment by any other Procuring Entity
- d) during the last three years or of any debarment by any other Procuring Entity In case of any breach of the Code of Integrity by a Service Provider or a prospective Service Provider, as the case may be, the Procuring Entity/Procuring Entity after giving a reasonable opportunity of being heard, may take appropriate measures including –
- a) exclusion of the Service Provider from the procurement process;
- b) recovery of payments made by the Procuring Entity along with interest thereon at bank rate;
- c) cancellation of the relevant contract and recovery of compensation for loss incurred by the Procuring Entity;
- d) debarment of the Service Provider from participation in future procurements of the Govt. of Assam for a period not exceeding three years.

2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract

Effectiveness of Contract

This Contract shall come into effect on the date the Contract is signed by both parties or such other later date as may be **stated** in the SCC.

Commencement of Services

- (a) **Program:** Before commencement of the Services, the Service Provider shall submit to the Procuring Entity for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order and timing for all activities. The Services shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Program as updated.
- (b) Starting Date: The Service Provider shall start carrying out the Services thirty (30) days after the date the Contract becomes effective, or at such other date as may be specified in the SCC.

Intended Completion Date

Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Sub-Clause 2.6, the Service Provider shall complete the activities by the Intended Completion Date, as is specified in the SCC. If the Service Provider does not complete the activities by the Intended Completion Date, it shall be liable to pay liquidated damage as per Sub-Clause 3.8. In this case, the Completion Date will be the date of completion of all activities.

Modification

Modification of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification of the scope of the Services or of the Contract Price, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties. However, each Party shall give due consideration to any proposals for modification or variation made by the other Party

Value Engineering

The Service Provider may prepare, at its own cost, a value engineering proposal at any time during the performance of the contract. The value engineering proposal shall, at a minimum, include the following;

- (a) the proposed change(s), and a description of the difference to the existing contract requirements;
- (b) a full cost/benefit analysis of the proposed change(s) including a description and estimate of costs (including life cycle costs, if applicable) the Procuring Entity may incur in implementing the value engineering proposal; and
- (c) a description of any effect(s) of the change on performance/functionality.

The Procuring Entity may accept the value engineering proposal if the proposal demonstrates benefits that:

- (a) accelerates the delivery period; or
- (b) reduces the Contract Price or the life cycle costs to the Procuring Entity; or
- (c) improves the quality, efficiency, safety or sustainability of the services; or
- (d) yields any other benefits to the Procuring Entity, without compromising the necessary functions of the Facilities.

If the value engineering proposal is approved by the Procuring Entity and results in:

- (a) a reduction of the Contract Price; the amount to be paid to the Service Provider shall be the percentage specified in the SCC of the reduction in the Contract Price; or
- (b) an increase in the Contract Price; but results in a reduction in life cycle costs due to any benefit described in (a) to (d) above, the amount to be paid to the Service Provider shall be the full increase in the Contract Price.

Force Majeure

Definition For the purposes of this Contract, "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations under the Contract impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances.

No Breach The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under the contract of Contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract in so far as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b)has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.

Extension of Time

Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

Payments

During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Service Provider shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Service after the end of such period.

Termination

By the Procuring Entity

The Procuring Entity may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the Service Provider, to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this Sub-Clause 2.6.1:

- (a) if the Service Provider does not remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations under the Contract, within thirty (30) days after being notified or within any further period as the Procuring Entity may have subsequently approved in writing;
- (b) if the Service Provider become insolvent or bankrupt;
- (c) if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days; or
- (d) if the Service Provider, in the judgment of the Procuring Entity has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract

By the Service Provider

The Service Provider may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty

- (30) days' written notice to the Procuring Entity, such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Sub-Clause 2.6.2:
- (a) if the Procuring Entity fails to pay any monies due to the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to Clause 7 within forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the Service Provider that such payment is overdue; or
- (b) if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.

Payment upon Termination

Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Sub-Clauses 2.6.1 or 2.6.2, the Procuring Entity shall make the following payments to the Service Provider:

(a) remuneration pursuant to Clause 6 for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;

(b) Except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a), (b), (d) of Sub-Clause 2.6.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incident to the prompt and orderly termination of the contract, including the cost of the return travel of the personnel

General

3. Obligations of the Service Provider

The Service Provider shall perform the Services in accordance with the Specifications and the Activity Schedule, and carry out its obligations with all due diligence, efficiency, and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional techniques and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate advanced technology and safe methods. The Service Provider shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful adviser to the Procuring Entity, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Procuring Entity's legitimate interests in any dealings with Subcontractors or third parties.

3.2 Conflict Interest

of The Service Provider shall hold the Procuring Entity's interests paramount, without any consideration for future work, and strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or their own corporate interests.

Conflict of interest for an Procuring Entity or its personnel and Service Provider is considered to be a situation in which a party has interests that could improperly influence that performance of its duties or responsibilities, contractual obligations, or compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Govt. of Assam describes the situations in which an Procuring Entity or its personnel may be considered to be in Conflict of Interest include, but are not limited to the following –

- a) Conflict of Interest occurs when the private interests of a procuring entity or its personnel, such as personal, non- official, extra- professional or other relationships or personal financial assets, interfere or appear to interfere with the proper performance of its professional functions or obligations as a procurement official;
- b) within the procurement environment, a Conflict of Interest may arise in connection with such private interests as personal investments and assets, political or other social activities and affiliations while in the service of the Procuring Entity, employment after retirement from service or of relatives or the receipt of a gift that may place the Procuring Entity or its personnel in a position of obligation;
- c) Conflict of Interest also includes the use of assets of the Procuring Entity including human, financial and material assets, or the use of the office of the Procuring Entity or knowledge gained from official functions for private gain or to prejudice the position of someone the Procuring Entity or its personnel does not favour;
- d) Conflict of Interest may also arise in situations where the Procuring Entity or any of its personnel is seen to benefit directly or indirectly or allow a third party, including family, friends or someone they favour, to benefit directly or indirectly from the decision or action of the Procuring Entity;

The situations in which Bidder participating in a procurement process or their representatives may be considered to be in Conflict of Interest include, but are not limited to the following-

- a) If they or their personnel or representatives or agents have any relationship or financial or business transactions or interests with any official of the Procuring Entity that are directly or indirectly involved in or related to the procurement process or execution of contract;
- b) If they receive or have received any direct or indirect subsidy from any other bidder;

- c) If they have the same legal representative for purposes of the bid:
- d) If they have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the bid of another:
- e) If they participate in more than one bid in the same bidding process;
- f) If they have controlling partners in common;
- g) If a consultant or any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the subject matter of procurement of the bidding process or were involved in such preparation in anyway;

The Service Provider agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Service Provider and any entity affiliated with the Service Provider, as well as any Subcontractors and any entity affiliated with such Sub-contractor, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to the Services for the preparation or implementation of the project, unless otherwise indicated in the **SCC**.

3.3 Confidentiality

The Service Provider, its Sub contractors, and the Personnel of either of them shall not, either during the term or within two (2) years after the expiration of this Contract, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Project, the Services, this Contract, or the Procuring Entity's business or operations without the prior written consent of the Procuring Entity

Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider The Service Provider (a) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Subcontractors to take out and maintain, at its (or the Subcontractors', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the Procuring Entity, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage, as shall be **specified in the SCC**; and (b) at the Procuring Entity's request, shall provide evidence to the Procuring Entity showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums have been paid.

Service Provider's Actions Requiring Procuring Entity's Prior Approval

Reporting Obligations

Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Procuring Entity

Liquidated Damages

Payments of Liquidate d Damages

The Service Provider shall obtain the Procuring Entity's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions:

- (a) entering into a subcontract for the performance of any part of the Services,
- (b) appointing such members of the Personnel not listed by name in Appendix C ("Key Personnel and Subcontractors"),
- (c) changing the Program of activities; and
- (d) any other action that may be specified in the SCC.

The Service Provider shall submit to the Procuring Entity the reports and documents specified in Appendix B in the form, in the numbers, and within the periods set forth in the said Appendix.

All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, and other documents and software submitted by the Service Provider in accordance with Sub- Clause 3.6 shall become and remain the property of the Procuring Entity, and the Service Provider shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents and software to the Procuring Entity, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Service Provider may retain a copy of such documents and software. Restrictions about the future use of these documents, if any, shall be **specified in the SCC.**

The Service Provider shall pay liquidated damages to the Procuring Entity at the rate per day stated in the SCC for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the SCC. The Procuring Entity may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Service Provider. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Service Provider's liabilities.

Correction for Over-payment

If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Procuring Entity shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Service Provider by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Service Provider shall be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in Sub-Clause 6.5.

Lack of performanc e penalty

If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Procuring Entity's notice, a penalty for Lack of performance will be paid by the Service Provider. The amount to be paid will be calculated as a percentage of the cost of having the Defect corrected, assessed as described in **Sub-Clause 7.2 and specified in the SCC**.

Performance Security

The Service Provider shall provide the Performance Security to the Procuring Entity within 28 days of issue of Letter of Award. The Performance Security shall be issued in an amount and form and by a bank or surety acceptable to the Procuring Entity. The performance Security shall be valid until a date 45 days from the Completion Date of the Contract in case of a bank guarantee.

3. Service Provider's Personnel

Description of Personnel

The titles, agreed job descriptions, minimum qualifications, and estimated periods of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of the Service Provider's Key Personnel are described in Appendix C. The Key Personnel and Subcontractors listed by title as well as by name in Appendix C are hereby approved by the Procuring Entity.

Removal and/ or Replacement of Personnel

- (a) Except as the Procuring Entity may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Service Provider, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Key Personnel, the Service Provider shall provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.
- (b) If the Procuring Entity finds that any of the Personnel have (i) committed serious misconduct or have been charged with having committed a criminal action, or (ii) have reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then the Service Provider shall, at the Procuring Entity's written request specifying the grounds thereof, provide as a replacement a person with qualifications and experience acceptable to the Procuring Entity.
- (c) The Service Provider shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.

4. Obligations of the Procuring Entity

Assistance and Exemptions

The Procuring Entity shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall provide the Service Provider such assistance and exemptions as **specified in the SCC**.

Change in the Applicable Law

If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost of the Services rendered by the Service Provider, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Service Provider under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the amounts referred to in Sub-Clauses 6.2 (a) or (b), as the case maybe.

Services and Facilities

The Procuring Entity shall make available to the Service Provider the Services and Facilities listed under Appendix E.

5. Payments to the Service Provider

Lump-Sum Remuneration

The Service Provider's remuneration shall not exceed the Contract Price and shall be a fixed lump-sum including all Subcontractors' costs, and all other costs incurred by the Service Provider in carrying out the Services described in Appendix A. Except as provided in Sub-Clause 5.2, the Contract Price may only be increased above the amounts stated in Sub-Clause 6.2 if the Parties have agreed to additional payments in accordance with Sub-Clauses 2.4 and 6.3.

Contract Price The price payable is set forth in the SCC.

Payment for Additional Services

For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional Services as may be agreed under Sub-Clause 2.4, a breakdown of the lump-sum price is provided in Appendix D.

Terms and Conditions of Payment

Payments will be made to the Service Provider according to the payment schedule **stated in the SCC**. **Unless otherwise stated in the SCC**, the advance payment (Advance for Mobilization, Materials and Supplies) shall be made against the provision by the Service Provider of a bank guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the period **stated in the SCC**. Any other payment shall be made after the conditions **listed in the SCC** for such payment have been met, and the Service Provider have submitted an invoice to the Procuring Entity specifying the amount due.

Dayworks

6.5.1 If applicable, the Daywork rates in the Service Provider's Bid Shall be used for small additional amounts of Services only when the Procuring Entity has given written instructions in advance for additional services to be paid in that way.

All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Service Provider on forms approved by the Procuring Entity. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Procuring Entity representative as indicated in Sub-Clause 1.6 within two days of the Services being performed.

The Service Provider shall be paid for Dayworks subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms as indicated in Sub-Clause6.5.2

7. Quality Control

Identifying Defects

The principle and modalities of Inspection of the Services by the Procuring Entity shall be as **indicated in the SCC**. The Procuring Entity shall check the Service Provider's performance and notify him of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Service Provider's responsibilities. The Procuring Entity may instruct the Service Provider to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any service that the Procuring Entity considers may have a Defect. Defect Liability Period is as **defined in the SCC**.

Correction of Defects, and Lack of Performanc e Penalty

- (a) The Procuring Entity shall give notice to the Service Provider of any Defects before the end of the Contract. The Defects liability period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- (b) Every time notice a Defect is given, the Service Provider shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Procuring Entity's notice.
- (c) If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Procuring Entity's notice, the Procuring Entity will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, the Service Provider will pay this amount, and a Penalty for Lack of Performance calculated as described in Sub-Clause 3.8.

8. Settlement of Disputes

Amicable Settlement

The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract or its interpretation.

Dispute Settlement

Any dispute between the Parties arising under or related to this Contract that cannot be settled amicably may be referred to by either Party to the adjudication/arbitration in accordance with the provisions specified in the **SCC**.

Section VIII - Special Conditions of Contract

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
1.1(c)	The contract name is <code>[Outsourcing of Hostel Mess Diet Catering alongwith Cafeteria Service at Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat-Assam.</code>
1.1(f)	The Procuring Entity is: Principal cum Chief Superintendent, Jorhat Medical College & Hospital, Jorhat
1.1(i)	The Member in Charge is[insert name of Member in Charge, in case bidder is JV]
1.1(I)	The Service Provider is
1.6	The addresses are:
	Procuring Entity:
	Attention:
	Facsimile:
	E-mail:
	Service Provider:
	Attention:
	Facsimile:
	E-mail: _
1.6	The Authorized Representatives are:
	For the Procuring Entity: [name, title]
	For the Service Provider: [name, title]
2.1	The date on which this Contract shall come into effect is
2.2.2	The Starting Date for the commencement of Services is
2.3	The Intended Completion Date is
2.4.1	If the value engineering proposal is approved by the Procuring Entity the amount to be paid to the Service Provider shall be% [insert appropriate percentage. The percentage is normally up to 50%] of the reduction in the Contract Price.
3.2.5	The Client reserves the right to determine on a case-by-case basis whether the Consultant should be disqualified from providing goods, works or non-consulting services due to aconflict of a nature described in Clause GCC 3.2.4.g

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract		
	YesNo		
3.4	The risks and coverage by insurance shall be:		
	(i) Third Party motor vehicle		
	(ii) Third Party liability		
	(iii) Procuring Entity's liability and workers' compensation_		
	(iv) Professional liability		
	(v) Loss or damage to equipment and property		
3.5(d)	The other actions are]		
3.7	Restrictions on the use of documents prepared by the Service Provider are:		
3.8.1	The liquidated damages rate isper day		
	The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole contract ispercent of the final Contract Price.		
3.8.3	The percentage to be used for the calculation		
F 4	of Lack of performance Penalty(ies) is		
5.1	The assistance and exemptions provided to the Service Provider are:		
6.2	The amount is		
6.4	Payments shall be made according to the following schedule:		
	Advance for Mobilization, Materials and Supplies: percent of the Contract Price shall be paid on the commencement date against the submission of a bank guarantee for the same.		
	 Progress payments in accordance with the milestones established as follows, subject to certification by the Procuring Entity, that the Services have been rendered satisfactorily, pursuant to the performance indicators: 		
	> (indicate milestone and/or percentage)		
	> (indicate milestone and/or percentage)and		
	> (indicate milestone and/or percentage)		
	Should the certification not be provided, or refused in writing by		

	the Procuring Entity within one month of the date of the milestone, or of the date of receipt of the corresponding invoice, the certification will be deemed to have been provided, and the progress payment will be released at such date.
Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
	• The amortization of the Advance mentioned above shall commence when the progress payments have reached 25% of the contract price and be completed when the progress payments have reached 75%.
	The bank guarantee for the advance payment shall be released when the advance payment has been fully amortized.
6.5	Payment shall be made withindays of receipt of the invoice and the relevant documents specified in Sub-Clause 6.4, and within days in the case of the final payment.
7.1	The principle and modalities of inspection of the Services by the Procuring Entity are as follows: The Defects Liability Period is

8.2 Disputes shall be settled by arbitration in accordance with the following provisions:

- 1. <u>Selection of Arbitrators</u>. Each dispute submitted by a Party to arbitration shall be heard by a sole arbitrator or an arbitration panel composed of three (3) arbitrators, in accordance with the following provisions:
- a) Where the Parties agree that the dispute concerns a technical matter, they may agree to appoint a sole arbitrator or, failing agreement on the identity of such sole arbitrator within thirty
- (30) days after receipt by the other Party of the proposal of a name for such an appointment by the Party who initiated the proceedings, either Party may apply to [name an appropriate professional body] for a list of not fewer than five (5) nominees and, on receipt of such list, the Parties shall alternately strike names there from, and the last remaining nominee on the list shall be the sole arbitrator for the matter in dispute. If the last remaining nominee has not been determined in this manner within sixty(60) days of the date of the list, [insert the name of the same professional body as above] shall appoint, upon the request of either Party and from such list or otherwise, a sole arbitrator for the matter in dispute.
- Where the Parties do not agree that the dispute concerns a technical matter, the Procuring Entity and the Service Provider shall each appoint one(1) arbitrator, and these two arbitrators shall jointly appoint a third arbitrator, who shall chair the arbitration panel. If the arbitrators named by the Parties do not succeed in appointing a third arbitrator within thirty (30) days after the latter of the two (2) arbitrators named by the Parties has been appointed, the third arbitrator shall, at the request of either Party, be appointed by [name an appropriate appointing authority].
- c) If, in a dispute subject to paragraph (b) above, one Party fails to appoint its arbitrator within thirty (30) days after the other Party has appointed its arbitrator, the Party which has named an arbitrator may apply to the [name the same appointing authority as in said paragraph (b)] to appoint a sole arbitrator for the matter in dispute, and the arbitrator appointed pursuant to such application shall be the sole arbitrator for that dispute.

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract		
Mat, AS	 Rules of Procedure. Except as otherwise stated herein, arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure for arbitration of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 as in force on the date of this Contract. 		
	3. <u>Substitute Arbitrators</u> . If for any reason an arbitrator is unable to perform his/her function, a substitute shall be appointed in the same manner as the original arbitrator.		
	4. Qualifications of Arbitrators. The sole arbitrator or the third arbitrator appointed pursuant to paragraphs 1(a) through 1(c) above shall be a nationally recognized legal or technical expert with extensive experience in relation to the matter in dispute.		
	 Miscellaneous. In any arbitration proceeding hereunder: a) proceedings shall be held in Guwahati, India b) The English language shall be the official language for all purposes; and c) the decision of the sole arbitrator or of a majority of the arbitrators (or of the third arbitrator if there is no such majority) shall be final and binding and shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction, and the Parties hereby waive any objections to or claims of immunity in respect of such enforcement. 		

Appendices

Appendix A - Description of the Services

Give detailed descriptions of the Services to be provided, dates for completion of various tasks, place of performance for different tasks, specific tasks to be approved by Procuring Entity, etc.

Appendix B - Schedule of Payments and Reporting Requirements

List all milestones for payments and list the format, frequency, and contents of reports or products to be delivered; persons to receive them; dates of submission; etc. If no reports are to be submitted, state here "Not applicable."

Appendix C - Key Personnel and Subcontractors

ist under: C-1

- C-1 Titles [and names, if already available], detailed job descriptions and minimum qualifications of Personnel to be assigned to work, and staff-months foreach.
- C-2 List of approved Subcontractors (if already available); same information with respect to their Personnel as inC-1.

Appendix D - Breakdown of Contract Price

List here the elements of cost used to arrive at the breakdown of the lump-sum price:

- 1. Rates for Equipment Usage or Rental or for Personnel (Key Personnel and other Personnel).
- Reimbursable expenditures.

This appendix will exclusively be used for determining remuneration for additional Services.

Appendix E - Services and Facilities Provided by the Procuring Entity

Section IX - Contract Forms

Letter of Acceptance			
[on letterhead paper of the Procuring Entity]			
	date		
To: [insert name and a	address of the Service Provider]		
Subject: <i>Contract No.</i>			
the bidder] for the Consultancy services Ref. No.] is hereby ac Rswords], as corrected a You are requested to f of this letter in accorda	execution of[insert date of bid submitted by execution of[insert brief description of Non-s] against Bid Invitation Ref. No(insert Bid excepted by the Procuring Entity for the Contract Amount of[insert amount in numbers and and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders. Furnish the Performance Security within 28 days form issue ance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose e Security Form included in Section IX, Contract Forms of security Forms IX.		
	Authorized Signature: Name and Designation of Signatory:		

Entity:

Name of Procuring

2. Form of Contract

[letterhead paper of the Procuring Entity]

LUMP-SUM REMUNERATION

This CONTRACT (hereinafter called the "Contract") is made the *[day]* day of the month of *[month]*, *[year]*, between, on the one hand, *[name of Procuring Entity]* (hereinafter called the "Procuring Entity") and, on the other hand, *[name of Service Provider]* (hereinafter called the "Service Provider").

[Note: In the text below text in brackets is optional; all notes should be deleted in final text. If the Service Provider consist of more than one entity, the above should be partially amended to read as follows: "...(hereinafter called the "Procuring Entity") and, on the other hand, a joint venture consisting of the following entities, each of which will be jointly and severally liable to the Procuring Entity for all the Service Provider's obligations under this Contract, namely, [name of Service Provider] and [name of Service Provider] (hereinafter called the "Service Provider").]

WHEREAS



- (a) The Procuring Entity has requested the Service Provider to provide certain Services as defined in the General Conditions of Contract attached to this Contract (hereinafter called the "Services");
- (b) the Service Provider, having represented to the Procuring Entity that they have the required professional skills, and personnel and technical resources, have agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract at a contract price of...;

Now therefore the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

- 1. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, and the priority of the documents shall be as follows:
 - (a) the Letter of Acceptance;
 - (b) the Service Provider's Bid
 - (c) the Special Conditions of Contract;
 - (d) the General Conditions of Contract;
 - (e) the Specifications;
 - (f) the Priced Activity Schedule; and
 - (g) The following Appendices: [**Note**: If any of these Appendices are not used, the words "Not Used" should be inserted below next to the title of the Appendix and

on the sheet attached here to carrying the title of that Appendix.]

Appendix A: Description of the Services

Appendix B: Schedule of Payments

Appendix C: Key Personnel and Sub contractors

Appendix D: Breakdown of Contract Price



Appendix E: Services and Facilities Provided by the Procuring Entity

- 2. The mutual rights and obligations of the Procuring Entity and the Service Provider shall be as set forth in the Contract, in particular:
 - (a) the Service Provider shall carry out the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and
 - (b) the Procuring Entity shall make payments to the Service Provider in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the Parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written.

For and on behalf of [name of Procuring Entity]

Authorized Representative]	
For and on behalf of [name of Service Provider]	
[Authorized Representative]	
[Note : If the Service Provider consists of more than one appear as signatories, e.g., in the following manner:]	e entity, all these entities should
For and on behalf of each of the Members of the Service	ce Provider
[name of member]	
[Authorized Representative]	

3. Performance Security

Bank Guarantee

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

Beneficiary: [insert name and Address of Procuring Entity] **Date:** _ [Insert date of issue] **PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.:** [Insert guarantee reference number] **Guarantor:** [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letter head]

We have been informed that _ [insert name of Service Provider which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the Non-Consulting Services of _ [insert name of contract and brief description of the Non-Consulting Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a performance guarantee is required.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of[insert amount in figures] ()[insert amount in words],1 such sum being payable upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that the Applicant is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract, without the Beneficiary needing to prove or to show grounds for your demand or the sum specified therein.

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the Day of, 2...2, and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office indicated above on or before that date.

BG confirmation can also be sought by sending email to	-	
(Bank Official email id)		

[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

² Insert the date fourty-five days after the expected completion dates described in GC Clause 18.4. The Procuring Entity should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the Procuring Entity would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Procuring Entity might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months] [one year], in the sponse to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

¹ The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount specified in the Letter of Acceptance.

4. Advance Payment Security

Beneficiary: [Insert name and Address of Procuring Entity] Date: [Insert date of

issue] ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor:[Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letter head]

We have been informed that [insert name of Service Provider, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the execution of [insert name of contract and brief description of Non-Consulting Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum [insert amount in figures] () [insert amount in words] is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or exceeding total sums not in an amount (___) [insert amount in words]¹ upon receipt of *linsert* figures] amount in by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand it self or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating either that the Applicant:

has used the advance payment for purposes other than toward delivery of Services; or

(b) has failed to repay the advance payment in accordance with the Contract conditions, specifying the amount which the Applicant has failed to repay.

A demand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a certificate from the Beneficiary's bank stating that the advance payment referred to above has been credited to the Applicant on its account number [insert number] at [insert name and address of Applicant's bank].

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Applicant as specified in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the interim payment certificate indicating that ninety (90) percent of the Accepted Contract Amount, has been certified for payment, or on the

[insert day] day of [insert month], 2 [insert year], which ever is eademand for payment under this guarantee must be received by before that date.	
BG confirmation can also be sought by sending email to Official email id)	(Bank
Redresses	[pignoturo(o)]
Ornal, ASSISTA	[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

¹ The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment.